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WELCOME TO NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC  
(NM GROUP)

04

NM Group operates nationally with ten strategically located regional offices 
and operational centres. We also provide engineering and management 
consultancy services internationally. With 5 operational divisions, including 
one wholly owned subsidiary, NM Group successfully provides design, build, 
operation and maintenance services across six main sectors covering 
the spheres of Civil Engineering, Building, Mechanical and Electrical 
Engineering and specialist product manufacturing. 

It is our vision to be recognised as a significant presence in 
the sectors we serve.

Our Plan is to continue to construct a sustainable and 
growing business through good leadership, effective 
communication and our motivated people.

To listen, provide a great place to work and a learning 
environment enabling everyone to achieve their full potential.

Our Values of People Inspire Excellence are fundamental 
to the continued profitable growth of NM Group and are 
embedded within our culture and behaviours.

Our People are critical to the success of the NM Group’s 
vision. We actively empower our people to drive and shape 
our business success and support people to reach their full 
potential. Testament to this is the recognition by the external 
body, Investors in People (IIP), awarding Gold status to the 
NM Group in November 2014.

Attracting, engaging, developing and retaining Our People 
gives the NM Group a competitive edge and helps us to 
differentiate ourselves in the marketplace.

The desire is for the NM Group to be a great place to work, 
so that its people perform to the peak of their capabilities, 
whilst enjoying it.

The Group is committed to sustained organic growth by 
delivering, in partnership with its clients, a quality product at 
an economic price, constructed to premium environmental 
standards, in accordance with the best health and safety 
practice.

The achievement of this will provide both enhanced value 
for shareholders and the opportunity for all members of the 
Group to develop and enhance their personal careers.

OUR MISSION

OUR PLAN

OUR VISION OUR VALUES

OUR PEOPLE
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We maintain a corporate website at 
www.northmid.co.uk containing a 
wide range of information of interest 
to institutional and private investors 
including:

•	 Latest News & Press Releases

•	 Annual Reports

OVERVIEW
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
There was encouraging growth in the 
construction market during the year, 
although margins remain extremely 
tight. Unfortunately the Group result 
was severely affected by the necessity 
to make further provisions against 
legacy contracts, secured at the height 
of the recession, in the building and civil 
engineering division (B&CE). The Utilities 
division also had a poor year due to 
losses incurred on the BDUK broadband 
roll-out programme for Carillion Telent.

The overall Group underlying profitability 
of £4.35 million (2013 £3.79 million) 
and revenue for the year exceeded 
managements’ expectations. However 
extra legacy provisions contributed to 
a Group loss before tax of £2.97 million 
(2013 £5.97 million) on a revenue that 
increased by 8.8% to £193.18 million 
(2013 £177.56 million).

Unforeseen further delays and cost 
over-runs on two major problematical 
contracts continued during the year 
and although great progress has been 
made on the resolution of the legacy 
contracts, a prudent review of those 
outstanding at the year end has resulted 
in further provisions being made. The 
pursuit of the reimbursement of excess 
costs incurred on these projects is 
contractually ongoing.

NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Group is justifiably proud of the 
strong set of core values that continues 
to be maintained in spite of the difficult 
trading conditions. The ethos of a family 
company, with a PLC status, still remains.

The achievement in being upgraded to 
the Investors in People Gold Standard 
and being only the second construction 
company in the UK to attain that level of 
accreditation was hugely significant and 
rewarding.

The Group is committed to a well-
trained and skilled in-house workforce. 
However, the shortage of suitably skilled 
talent in the construction industry is a 
major concern, particularly as market 
conditions improve. To negate this 

both the apprenticeship and graduate 
programmes have been maintained and 
are proving to be an excellent investment 
for the future. We were delighted that 
Simon Reeve was awarded Apprentice 
of the Year in the Construction News 
Specialist Awards last year.

The current business model serving our 
customers is one of a skilled and trained 
in-house workforce working alongside 
a suitably qualified supply chain. This 
enables the Group to deliver a high level 
of customer service along with an all 
year round capability. The maintenance 
and development of consistent training 
programmes are therefore of vital 
importance. 3,262 (2013 2,892) training 
days were undertaken during the year, 
equating to an average of 2.79 days per 
employee (2013 3.05).

The maintenance and development of 
strong relationships with the supply 
chain is essential to the growth of the 
Group. The major initiative instigated last 
year to improve the performance both 
operationally, collaboratively and in the 
area of innovation of the supply chain is 
already being rewarded with enhanced 
performance.

Strong Health and Safety and 
Environmental performance is essential 
for the wellbeing of not just the 
employees, but also the relationships 
between the Group and its customers. 
The last year has seen an overall 
increase in performance with the Group 
being the recipient of six Health and 
Safety and five Environmental awards 
during the year, with both incident and 
frequency rates for accidents remaining 
comfortably below the industry average.

The Group’s activities have a significant 
impact not only on the environment, but 
also on the local communities, where the 
work is undertaken. Close liaison with 
these communities is key, and the Group 
is justifiably proud of its public relations, 
most particularly on some high profile 
town centre schemes, where disruption 
has been kept to a minimum. The 

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

“The overall Group underlying 
profitability of £4.35 million and 
revenue for the year exceeded 
managements’ expectations.”

ROBERT MOYLE  
CHAIRMAN

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD
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Group works closely with Business in 
the Community and is engaged on CSR 
projects both with that organisation and 
also under its own initiative. The Charity 
Committee distributes funds to worthy 
causes of its choice throughout the year 
and employees are actively encouraged 
to engage in fundraising efforts. Last 
year’s performance and data are all 
detailed in the separate CSR report.

FINANCING
The Group credit facilities continue to 
remain adequate for the foreseeable 
future and it has sufficient funds to 
support its growth going forward. At the 
year end the cash balance was £5.28 
million (2013 £4.88 million).

OUTLOOk
The secured order book for the current 
financial year is circa £155 million and 
this represents a significant proportion 
of the 2015 budget. This level of secured 
revenue, along with the forecasted 
level of orders likely to be received 
under the existing frameworks, coupled 
with the underlying performance, is 
encouraging. The resolution of the few 
remaining legacy contracts still remains 
challenging, but progress is being made. 
This lends the Board to be cautiously 
optimistic for the future.

ROBERT MOYLE 
Chairman 
17 April 2015

OVERVIEW
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

8.8%

2013: £4.877m2013: (£5.855m)

2013: (£177.56m)

2013: £150m

REVENUE

CASH POSITION AT YEAR ENDOPERATING LOSS

SECURED WORkLOAD FOR 2015 AT CIRCA

£193.18m

£5.3m(£2.85m)

£155m
FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

Excluding legacy contracts  
2013: £3.79m

UNDERLYING PROFITABILITY*

£4.35m

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Strong performance in the water businesses (Nomenca and NMCNomenca), with further 
combined increases in revenues and profitability.

The E5 Joint operation with three other framework contractors is circa 95% complete and the 
projected outturn remains encouraging.

85% of Group revenues derived from frameworks going forward.

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD

* Underlying profitablity is profit before tax, excluding legacy contract losses of £7.32 million (2013 £9.69 million) 
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5 frameworks secured or extended equating  
to c£120m 

The largest of these was the new Capital Maintenance framework being awarded to 
NMCNomenca for the Eastern area for Severn Trent Water which will run until 2020. 

The decision by South West Water to extend the existing MEICA framework with 
Nomenca until 2018 was a massive positive to our Plymouth and St Austell teams 
and enables us to look to strengthen our position within the South West.

The Highways division secured a 3 year Highways & Infrastructure Framework 
for Birmingham City Council and a significant win with the Leeds to Bradford 
Cycle Superhighway Phase 1.

The securing of a 4 year social housing 
framework for Nottingham Community 
Housing Association has added to our 
existing housing association portfolio 
and an area of identified major growth.

The Water sector still remains our 
biggest market sector at 64% of 
turnover but the Group is putting 
greater emphasis on developing other 
core market sectors to reduce this to 
50% by 2020.

Communications 12%

International 1%

Education 1%

Public Sector 4%

Energy 2%

Social Housing 3%

Highways 13%

Industrial 1%

Water 64%

% OF TURNOVER

NMGROUP CURRENTLY 
HAS 47 LIVE 
FRAMEWORkS WHICH 
WE FORECAST WILL 
REALISE C£170M OF 
TURNOVER IN 2015. 

18 FRAMEWORkS BEING 
RE-BID ACROSS THE 
ENERGY, PUBLIC SECTOR, 
SOCIAL HOUSING AND 
WATER SECTOR; THESE 
HAVE A COMBINED VALUE 
OF C£450M.

c£170m

c£450m

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

05

OVERVIEW
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Following on from my previous 
placements and the trust I had already 
built up with the NM Group I was able 
to start this summer as a Site Engineer 
straight away. The Alder Way Flood 
Alleviation Scheme was a challenge 
but I quickly found my feet. The project 
involved upsizing the existing sewers 
as well as creating some large in-line 
tank storage facilities. My role on site 
was to make sure that all the pipes were 
laid and levelled correctly as well as 
avoiding many of the buried services. I 
was also given the opportunity to keep 
check of material stocks as well as being 
responsible for the site diary and as-built 
drawings. Closing residential streets and 
working in close proximity to the general 
public brought up many complications 
but I very much enjoyed the challenge of 
keeping them informed of our works and 
any disturbances that might occur as 
well as answering many of the questions 
asked by curious passers-by. 

Towards the latter end of the summer 
I was asked to help set up Hold Drive 
Flood Alleviation Scheme. This is a 
much bigger scheme than I’d worked 
on previously, with storm and foul sewer 
upgrading, a balancing pond, auger 
boring and a large storage shaft tank 
to be sunk. This was the first time I 
witnessed the start of a project and I got 
the opportunity to set up the cabins and 
help out with the masses of paperwork 
to complete before a project can start. I 
was kept very busy!

Having successfully completed 4 
summer placements with the NM Group 
I truly feel that the experience I’ve gained 
will be invaluable for the rest of my life. 
It’s hard to believe just how much time 
and support the Group have given me 
over the years and I’m very much looking 
forward to joining the company as a 
Graduate in 2015.

CASE STUDY 

“As I currently start studying my 4th and 
final year of my Civil Engineering degree 
at Southampton University, I can look 
back at yet another successful summer 
placement here at the NM Group.”

Name:  Will Hooper
University:  Southampton University
Course:  MEng Civil Engineering
Year: 3rd Year
Placement: Summer 2014 
Division: NMCNomenca

AN AWARD WINNING YEAR FOR OUR PEOPLE

06
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Our people formula continues to be 
simple and effective. We engage and 
develop our people to ensure we deliver 
sustained results for our clients and we 
ensure our talent pipeline is strong to 
deliver success today and in the future. 

This year has been a Golden Year of 
achievements:

•	 Achievement of Investors in People 
Gold

•	 Winner in the Construction News 
Specialist Awards for Apprentice of 
the Year

•	 Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and 
Leicestershire Chamber of Commerce 

(DNLCC) Regional Winner for 
Commitment to People Development 
in the Chamber Awards

•	 Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and 
Leicestershire Chamber of Commerce 
(DNLCC) Business Awards Finalist for 
Commitment to People development 

•	 Our internal Star Awards for 
employees who have gone over and 
above within the company celebrated 

•	 14 specific gold star celebrations of 
personal success and achievement

The Golden Year has been our theme, 
with a golden thread linking our 
leadership at the very top of our 

organisation through to every individual 
who contributes to our success. 

Developing a ‘clear’ line of sight to 
support the business direction of the 
Group has been the focus for this year. 
By building on our foundations, we 
have challenged and developed our 
Leadership and Development Strategy, 
our Learning and Development Strategy 
and our Employee Engagement 
Strategy. We have developed a truly 
holistic approach to the NM Group 
People Strategy which has already 
been implemented and we are seeing 
significant successes, including:

•	 16 promotions to First Line 
Management

•	 14 promotions to Middle Management

•	 6 promotion to Senior Management

•	 6 celebrations of Chartered Engineer 
Status

These results complement our positive 
retention rate which is currently 84.95%
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OUR LOCATIONS

01. Huthwaite

02. Bristol

03. Derby

04. Exeter

05. Hull

06. Plymouth

07. Sherburn

08. St Austell

09. Warrington

10. Woolston

NM Group operates nationally with ten strategically located 
regional offices and operational centres. We also provide 
engineering and management consultancy services internationally. 
With 5 main operational divisions, including one wholly owned 
subsidiary, NM Group successfully provides design, build, operation 
and maintenance services across six main sectors covering the 
spheres of Civil Engineering, Building, Mechanical and Electrical 
Engineering and specialist product manufacturing.

Building & Civils

Highways

NMCNomenca

Nomenca

Utilities

% OF GROUP 
REVENUE BY

DIVISION 

9%

14%

12%

25%

40%

WHAT WE DO
The Building and Civil Engineering division delivers 
design and build projects for the public and private sector 
including: social housing associations, private developers, 
education, retail, leisure and commercial. As well as 
design and build projects for the public and private sector 
including: power, waste to energy and food processing.

Projects have included refurbishment of grade I and 
II listed buildings, business park developments, office 
refurbishments and new build properties. As well 
as network distribution substations, switchgear and 
transformer buildings, flood defence, and infrastructure 
maintenance services to power stations and steelworks.

NUMBER OF PEOPLE  
AND LOCATIONS

64 
EMPLOYEES

OPERATING FROM:  
Head Office in Huthwaite, 
Nottinghamshire

GROUP

BUILDING & CIVIL ENGINEERING

HIGHWAYS

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

30%

5%

15%

Business Park developments 

Social Housing

Offices

REVENUE BY 
MARKET

35%

5%

10%

Power

Food Processing

Steelworks

30%

70%

Public Realm 

Highways

REVENUE BY 
MARKET

WHAT WE DO
The Highways division delivers highway, bridge structures 
and public realm schemes across public and private sectors. 
The expertise of our highway project teams encompasses 
both new design and build schemes and complex traffic 
management improvement work to adoptable standards. 
This is in addition to Section 278 works, upgrades to the 
existing highways network and construction of highway 
bridges and footbridges. The divisions’ urban regeneration 
and public realm works continues to make them one of the 
leading UK Contractors in this field.

NUMBER OF PEOPLE  
AND LOCATIONS

68 
EMPLOYEES

OPERATING FROM:  
Head Office in Huthwaite, 
Nottinghamshire. 
Warrington, Cheshire and 
Emersons Green, Bristol.

WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD
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WHAT WE DO
The Utilities division was the first within the Group. Starting 
off laying ducts for the Post Office on a contract in Alfreton, 
Derbyshire, it progressively developed to working all over 
England and Wales on General Post Office duct contracts and 
road maintenance contracts.

Specialist division delivering utility diversion and installation 
works for the telecommunications, high speed fibre and energy 
providers. The division is accredited to work on infrastructure 
across the telecommunications, power, defence and water 
sectors, including statutory bodies such as Openreach, Virgin 
Media, Northern Power Grid, Western Power Distribution and 
Electricity North West amongst others.

NUMBER OF PEOPLE  
AND LOCATIONS

202  
EMPLOYEES

OPERATING FROM:  
Head Office in Huthwaite, 
Nottinghamshire. Hull, 
Yorkshire and Warrington, 
Cheshire.

WHAT WE DO
Established in 2009 as a team to service our AMP5/6 Infrastructure 
and Non-Infrastructure frameworks with Severn Trent Water for 
both Civil and MEICA projects. The services include programme 
management, feasibility and optioneering studies, design and 
construction. Gaining further contracts with the E5 consortium, 
securing the Capital Maintenance framework for the Eastern 
area and the award of the new multi-million Ambergate reservoir 
scheme.

NMCNomenca has also continued to deliver the Local Delivery partner 
framework for Anglian Water from its Bury-St-Edmunds office.

NUMBER OF PEOPLE  
AND LOCATIONS

420  
EMPLOYEES

OPERATING FROM:  
Head Office in Huthwaite, 
Nottinghamshire. Severn 
Trent Offices in Raynesway, 
Derby and Longbridge, 
Warwickshire. Woolpit, 
Bury-St-Edmunds

Infrastructure 50%

Non-Infrastructure 45%

Security 5%

MARKET
REVENUE BY 

WHAT WE DO
Specialist service provider, Nomenca Limited has an extensive scope 
of capabilities. These comprise of project management of turnkey 
Civils and MEICA schemes both nationally and internationally. 
Design and construction of turnkey and standalone MEICA schemes. 
Asset optimisation, plant maintenance studies, energy surveys and 
consultancy design services.

The subsidiary also has a complimentary product portfolio 
encompassing CE marked fabricated products, chemical dosing 
package plant and systems for water and wastewater applications, 
washwater booster sets, package pumping stations and package UV 
treatment systems. This is further enhanced with an Operation and 
Maintenance service for various blue chip clients’ asset portfolios.

Sectors which Nomenca operate in are Water, Power, Government, 
Waste to Energy, Wind Energy and Materials Handling.

Nomenca’s design services have recently been strengthened and 
process schemes completed in North America, Brazil, Thailand and 
Denmark, as well as the ongoing support of one of the world’s most 
important tungsten mines.

NUMBER OF PEOPLE  
AND LOCATIONS

318  
EMPLOYEES

OPERATING FROM:  
Head Office in Huthwaite, 
Nottinghamshire. 
Warrington, Cheshire. 
Sherburn-in-Elmet, Leeds. 
Plympton, Plymouth. 
St Austell, Cornwall. 
Emersons Green, Bristol. 
Exeter, Devon.

Water 82%

Industrial 10%

Government 8%

MARKET
REVENUE BY 

UTILITIES

NMCNOMENCA

NOMENCA LIMITED

Communicatioms 80%

Power 20%

MARKET
REVENUE BY 

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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OUR PEOPLE
A GOLDEN YEAR TO CELEBRATE

NUMBER OF TRAINEES

COMPLETED LEADERSHIP 
AND DEVELOPMENT 
PROGRAMMES

68

37

The return on investment from 
our Leadership and Management 
development programmes was 
recognised by the IIP assessment 
process. For the NM Group, the ultimate 
recognition was the feedback from our 
employees confirming that the culture 
for engagement and development is 
strong and our leaders and managers 
create a positive environment for each 
employee to undertake their duties 
within a safe operating environment to 
the best of their ability.

Our People Strategy remains 
straightforward, to identify, retain, 
develop and look after our people to 
ensure the benefits to the business 
will follow. This has been translated 
into effective talent planning, where all 
employees are given the opportunity to 
develop and grow to the best of their 
ability. This culture is underpinned by 
the embedded NM Academy. The NM 
Academy provides a platform to enable 
all individuals to have the opportunity to 
develop and achieve their potential. Such 
opportunities include the development 

of soft skills, such as communication, 
through to the achievement of technical 
skills for example, the achievement 
of Chartered status with Professional 
Institutions.

Our all-inclusive approach has 
seen the celebration of an award 
winning Apprentice Scheme for the 
sector through to the identification 
and implementation of business 
improvement ideas by Team Leaders 
on their Leadership and Management 
development journey.

The People focus will continue with  
the launch of a Health and Wellbeing 
agenda into 2015 and beyond. We 
recognise our wider role in developing 
employees in their soft and technical 
skills, and promise to continue an 
inclusive approach to personal and 
professional development. Therefore,  
we want to assist people to manage their 
own health and wellbeing, in and out of 
the workplace. We passionately believe 
that a healthy and happy workforce will 
continue to ensure a positive business 
return.

An external benchmark was celebrated by the 
achievement of Investors in People (IIP) Gold in 
November. This achievement not only reinforced 
the successful implementation of a holistic People 
Strategy but more importantly, the buy in and 
ownership of all Leaders, Managers and Team 
Members across the Group. 

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD
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PROjECT BACkGROUND
Prescot WTW is a key works during the Haweswater Aqueduct 
(HA) 2013 outage. The West-East Link Main (WELM), built in 
AMP4, provides a connection between regional supplies in the 
East and West. The WELM pipeline links Prescot WTW in the 
west to Woodgate Hill Service Reservoirs, near Bury in the east. 
The WELM can supply 100 Ml/d in either direction and during 
the HA Outage provides contingency flow in the event of a loss of 
treated water from the western region.

During the HA Outage, Prescot WTW will be required to run at 60 
Ml/d, with the ability to run at 85 Ml/d for 3 days in the event of 
an issue elsewhere. To achieve this extra throughput a UV plant 
was installed to deal with Crypto issues during the HA outage 
and the disinfection process transferred to UV Disinfection post 
HA outage.

A new UV system was installed and included new connections 
into an existing 900mm pumping main, new concreteslab, 
UV “K” reactor, all control and power systems, and system 
integration into current site control software, telemetry and 
SCADA modifications.

SCOPE OF WORkS
•	 UV Plant – New UV Plant:
•	 Project management, engineering design, test and 

commission of the new UV plant
•	 New base slab for new UV plant
•	 Design manufacture supply and installation of new UV  

plant reactor

•	 New kiosk/building
•	 Pipe work and electrical installation
•	 Software development and integration 

RGF FILTER MEDIA REPLACEMENT – 7NO FILTERS:
•	 Project management, engineering design of the media 

replacement
•	 Removal of redundant media
•	 Installation of new media
•	 Filter sampling following installation

IMPROVEMENTS TO CHLORINATORS/SULPHINATORS
•	 Project management, engineering design, test and 

commission of the improvements
•	 Design manufacture supply and installation of new 

Chlorinator, Sulphinator, Manifold and vac reg assembly
•	 Pipe work and electrical installation
•	 Software development and integration

TEMPORARY PACL INSTALLATION
•	 Removal of existing dosing pumps and flow meters
•	 Design manufacture supply and installation of new dosing 

pumps, flow meters, flow switches, temporary IBC tanks, 
temporary tank complete with level control, and 3 way valve

•	 Replacement of existing dosing lances
•	 Pipe work and electrical installation
•	 Software development and integration
•	 Testing and commissioning of the new temporary plant

PRESCOT WTW PROjECT

PROjECT: PRESCOT WTW

CLIENT: UNITED UTILITIES

FINAL VALUE: £1,805,687

DURATION: 40 WEEkS

DELIVERY DIVISION: NOMENCA

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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MARkETPLACE

NM Group successfully provides design, build, operation and maintenance 
services across six main sectors covering Civil Engineering, Building, 
Mechanical and Electrical Engineering and specialist product  
manufacturing sectors. 

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Retain existing frameworks

•	 Secure additional frameworks for 
Building, Civils and Nomenca in 
Products, Power and Social Housing.

•	 Expand Client base for Building and 
Civils focussing on ‘blue chip’ clients 
and local government.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
Development of Group businesses to 
service core market sectors of: 

•	 Communications

•	 Education

•	 Energy

•	 Highways

•	 Public Sector

•	 Social Housing

•	 Water

Based on the forecast investment spend 
in these core areas the Group’s market 
share in 2020 would equate to 0.78%. 

COMMUNICATIONS

Government commitment for the UK 
to have the best super-fast broadband 
network in Europe by 2015 with a 
minimum level of 2Mbps.

The government wants 90% of UK 
businesses to be connected to super-fast 
broadband by 2015. 

By December 2014, two-thirds of the 
country will have access to ultra-fast 
fibre.

UK households to have access to 
30Mbps by 2020.

PAS2016 requirement on builders 
and developers to install digital 
infrastructure into all new build 
domestic dwellings.

Forecast sector spend of £500million 
annum for the period 2015-2020. 

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£24m in the 
Communications sector; equating to a 
UK market share of 1.6%.

EDUCATION

Forecast sector spend of £4billion 
per annum for the period 2015-2020 
through central government funding 
programmes.

University spend is self-financed 
and equates to c£2billion per annum 
for the period 2015-2020. BIGGAR 
forecasts £44.3billion over next 25 years 
emanating just from the Russell Group.

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£1m in 
the Education sector; equating to a UK 
market share of 0.01%.

ENERGY

Forecast sector spend stands at £6billion 
per annum, this is forecast to grow to 
£10billion during the period 2015-2020 
and then by 2025 be at £17billion per 
annum.

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£3m in the 
Energy sector; equating to a UK market 
share of 0.05%.

Forecast sector spend 
on energy projects of 
£10billion per annum for 
the period 2015-2020. 

£10billion

MARk HANRAHAN
GROUP BUSINESS DEvELOPMENT DIRECTOR
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HIGHWAYS

Forecast sector spend of £14billion per 
annum for the period 2015-2020. Of 
this there is a commitment to spend 
£1.2billion per annum repairing local 
roads and £800million per annum in 
national resurfacing.

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£26m in 
the Highways sector; equating to a UK 
market share of 0.18%.

HOUSING ASSOCIATIONS

Forecast sector spend on Housing 
projects of £1.5billion per annum for the 
period 2015-2020.

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£6m in 
Housing Association schemes; equating 
to a UK market share of 0.04%.

PUBLIC SECTOR

Forecast sector spend on Flood Defence 
projects of £500million per annum for 
the period 2015-2020.

Defra has announced plans to spend 
£3.2 billion on flood and coastal erosion 
in the year 2014-2015. The Department 
has also pledged an additional £270 
million for urgent repairs, restoration 
and maintenance of defences.

Forecast sector spend on Capital projects 
and maintenance of £600million per 
annum for the period 2015-2020. 

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£7m in the 
Public sector; equating to a UK market 
share of 0.16%.

WATER

Forecast sector spend of £4billion 
per annum for the period 2015-2020 
(excludes Thames Tideway). Of this there 
is a commitment to spend c£2billion 
per annum on off-site build solutions, 
£1.2billion per annum on Capital 
Maintenance and £500million per annum 
on Infrastructure schemes.

MARkET SHARE
In 2014 NM Group delivered c£125m in 
the Water sector, covering Infrastructure, 
Non-Infrastructure, SEMD, Capital 
Maintenance, Service & Maintenance 
and Plant Operation; equating to a UK 
market share of 2.9%.

AMP6 OfWAT drivers are around TOTEX 
and Outcome based solutions, as such 
there will be a greater move to Asset 
Optimisation, capital maintenance and 
energy/chemical reduction. OfWAT 
suggest it will take until the next AMP to 
be delivering TOTEX based solutions.

The AMP6 period 2015-2020 will see 
clients demanding more off-site built 
solutions as mentioned above, with 
current commitments of c£2billion per 
annum. In 2013 the Group produced 
c£7m of off-site assembled/package 
solutions which equates to 0.35% of the 
potential UK market share. 
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Forecast sector spend on 
highways of £14billion 
per annum for the period 
2015-2020.

Forecast sector spend 
on water projects of 
£4billion per annum for 
the period 2015-2020.

£1.5billion

£14billion

£4billion

Forecast spend on 
housing projects of 
£1.5billion per annum for 
the period 2015-2020.

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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BUSINESS MODEL

BUILDING AND CIVIL ENGINEERING, HIGHWAYS, UTILITIES

01. WHAT WE DO

03. THE RESOURCES WE HAVE

05. OUR STRATEGIC PARTNERS

06. HOW WE FIT INTO THE VALUE CHAIN

SUPPORT SERVIVES

PRIVATE AND PUBLIC SECTOR

02. OUR CUSTOMERS ARE

04. OUR CAPABILITIES

07. HOW VALUE IS REALISED (MONETISED)

08. HOW VALUE IS PRESERVED

 ❱ Design
 ❱ Construction
 ❱ Civil Engineering
 ❱ Civil Maintenance
 ❱ Build Solutions

 ❱ Extensive range of construction 
plant and machinery

 ❱ Large transport fleet of vehicles
 ❱ Own re-cycling centre (Recycling 

over 50,000 tonnes of material that 
would normally go to landfill) 

 ❱ Customer Integration/
Collaboration

 ❱ Contractors
 ❱ Outsource Partners
 ❱ Supply chain initiative: Partners for 

delivery (P4d)

 ❱ General Industry
 ❱ Defence
 ❱ Education
 ❱ Fire Stations
 ❱ Hotel & Leisure
 ❱ Power

 ❱ Prisons
 ❱ Residential
 ❱ Retail
 ❱ Waste & Energy
 ❱ Fibre Broadband
 ❱ Highways

 ❱ Utilities
 ❱ Environmental
 ❱ Infrastructure
 ❱ Regeneration
 ❱ Housing Associations

 ❱ Planning & design 
in-house

 ❱ Expertise & 
capabilities in 
building, construction 
and strong project 
management

 ❱ ISO 9001, ISO 14001 
OHSAS 18001 
standards

 ❱ Efficient processes, 
preventing pollution, 
minimising waste, 
reducing carbon 
footprint

 ❱ Specialist licenses 
and accreditations 
linked to Energy, 
telecoms and sewage 
networks

 ❱ The sale and delivery of an infrastructure project providing a ‘value 
enhancing’ asset to our customers/partners. Projects utilise our specialised 
resources and capabilities that are charged/costed periodically during the 
project cycle.

LONG TERM: 
Investment in our people.

MEDIUM TERM: 
Investment in processes.

SHORT TERM:
Investment in systems.

Final Use

Planning/Use Established

Acquisition

Opportunity/Development Need

Construct/Build/Realise

Design/Consult

09. SHAREHOLDER VALUE AND RETURNS
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NMCNOMENCA, NOMENCA LTD

01. WHAT WE DO

03. THE RESOURCES WE HAVE

05. OUR STRATEGIC PARTNERS

06. HOW WE FIT INTO THE VALUE CHAIN

PRIVATE AND PUBLIC SECTOR

02. OUR CUSTOMERS ARE

04. OUR CAPABILITIES

07. HOW VALUE IS REALISED (MONETISED)

08. HOW VALUE IS PRESERVED

 ❱ Design
 ❱ Build
 ❱ Operate
 ❱ Maintain and Service
 ❱ Product Manufacturing

 ❱ High quality waste water and water 
treatment products and systems

 ❱ Specialist technical plant and 
equipment 

 ❱ Customer and supplier 
Integration/Collaboration

 ❱ Supply chain management 
delivered by Nomenca

 ❱ Supply chain initiative: Partners 
for delivery (P4d)

 ❱ Water
 ❱ Materials Handling
 ❱ Energy
 ❱ Government
 ❱ Rail

 ❱ Defence
 ❱ Industrial
 ❱ Paper
 ❱ Charitable Trust
 ❱ Food

 ❱ Provision of 
experienced and 
quality personnel 
providing expert 
advice and solutions

 ❱ Specialist technical 
capabilities 

 ❱ Design services

 ❱ Specialist project 
management delivery

 ❱ Turnkey and 
Standalone MEICA 
Solutions

 ❱ Programme 
management MEICA 
Design, Process 

Design, Pressure 
Vessel certification

 ❱ 3D laser surveying & 
modelling

 ❱ Asset Optimisation
 ❱ BIM

‘One Stop Shop’ offer supported by: 

 ❱ Group structure
 ❱ Modular designs and solutions
 ❱ Client specific solutions

 ❱ Excellent client relationships & 
repeat business

 ❱ Skilled Assembly Factory Environment 
(SAFE) initiative

LONG TERM: 
Investment in our people.

MEDIUM TERM:
Investment in Processes 
and Facilities.

SHORT TERM:
Investment in systems.

Underpinned: EFQM Business Excellence Model

Customer Need/Niche Requirement

Use of Facility

Aftercare/Maintenance

Solution/Build and Implementation

09. SHAREHOLDER VALUE AND RETURNS

Bespoke Solutions

‘Off the shelf’ Modular Solutions

Design/Scope Solution

Consultancy/Evaluation/Advice

15
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SUPPORTING OUR STRATEGIC OBjECTIVE OF PROFITABLE GROWTH IN SUSTAINABLE MARkETS.
Through detailed analysis of various market sectors involving numerous client discussions we have identified 3 main areas of 
significant growth for NMGroup. The following is a brief overview of our medium to long term strategic objectives for each of these.

GROUP STRATEGY

Development of a fully integrated Products business by 
2017 providing Off-Site assembled products from our SAFE 
Catalogue range, including:

•	 Chemical Dosing
•	 Instrumentation Boards 

and Stands
•	 Booster Sets
•	 Package Pumping 

Stations

•	 UV Package Plant
•	 Pre-cast Inlet Works
•	 Pre-cast Valve Chambers
•	 Pre-cast Pumping 

Stations

Development of a fully integrated Energy business by 2020 
servicing the following areas:

•	 Power Distribution
•	 Power Transmission
•	 Wind
•	 Combined Heat Power
•	 Anaerobic Digestion
•	 Waste to Energy
•	 Biomass Fuel Handling

Providing:
•	 Design services
•	 Civils, HV/LV Electrical, 

Mechanical
•	 3D Laser surveying and 

modelling
•	 Civils construction
•	 Bases, bunds, security 

work
•	 Building construction
•	 HV/LV local cabling
•	 M&E Balance of plant and 

installation

PRODUCTS

ENERGY

A detailed review of strategy at divisional and business unit level is provided on pages 18 to 25.

NM Group intends to deliver sustainable growth by focusing upon its core strengths and capabilities. During 2015 it is our 
intention to restructure the business to take advantage of market growth within the Building, Highways and Broadband sectors. 
We will continue to only consider projects with an appropriate level of risk and potential value that accords with both operational 
and financial capability. Joint Venture arrangements with both NMCNomenca and Nomenca continue to deliver success and 
opportunities will be further explored in certain strategic markets.

We will continue to self-deliver c50% of our revenue through our highly skilled, motivated and loyal people. This will be supported 
by our ambitious apprentice, under graduate and graduate recruitment and training programmes, as well as our people 
development plans; under the NM Academy banner. This strategy is fundamental to us exceeding expectations and delivering a 
world class Customer Experience.
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To support these strategic areas of development and growth NMGroup has established a series of joint working groups with 
Champions that are responsible for the delivery of:

•	 BS11000 Collaborative Working – accreditation by Q2 2015

•	 EFQM Business Excellence Model – Products business aligned 
by Q3 2015

•	 BS27001 Data Management Security – accreditation by Q4 2015

•	 BIM Level 2 – compliance by Q1 2016

•	 ISO55000 Standard for Asset Management – accreditation by 
Q3 2016

•	 Customer Service Excellence – accreditation by Q4 2016

Development of a consultancy business by 2018 providing 
a portfolio of services, both nationally and internationally, 
across various sectors, including:

•	 Mechanical
•	 Electrical – HV and LV
•	 ICA
•	 Civils
•	 Structural
•	 Process 

•	 3D Surveying and 
modelling

•	 Energy and Plant Surveys
•	 Programme and 

Construction 
management

kEY DRIVERS

CONSULTANCY SERVICES

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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DIVISIONAL STRATEGY, FINANCIAL AND OPERATING 
PERFORMANCE — BUILDING AND CIVIL ENGINEERING

ROBERT MOYLE  
CHAIRMAN, CHIEF ExECUTIvE AND MANAGING 
DIRECTOR, BUILDING

BUILDING 

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Develop existing client relationship 

and opportunities with local 
architects and consultants for 
schemes <£5m, within core areas of 
expertise; Student Accommodation, 
Social Housing and Business Park 
Developments.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Continued development and growth 

of a building business within the East 
Midlands servicing existing areas of 
expertise and core market sectors 
of Education and Government as 
well as opportunities through select 
developers.

Due to revived activity in the building market and the recruitment of a new 
experienced team, sadly from the demise of a significant local contractor it has 
been decided to split the old B&CE division back in to two separate operating 
divisions. From 1 January 2015 the Building division has operated as a stand 
alone entity and the Civil Engineering division will be managed by the successful 
NMCNomenca board.

WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The resolution of legacy contracts and 
further cost and time overruns on two 
major problematical contracts have 
contributed to further heavy losses 
being incurred in the B&CE division.

Losses reduced by 34.9% to £6.22 
million (2013 £9.55 million) after extra 
legacy costs and provisions of £6.82 
million (2013 £9.69 million) on revenue 
reduced by 39.5% to £15.77 million (2013 
£26.06 million).

The combined division has now been 

divided back into two separate entities 
for Civil Engineering and Building, 
with the civil engineering division 
operating under the management of 
NMCNomenca. The building division 
is being managed by a newly recruited 
team. The underlying performance of 
both the civil and building elements was 
profitable and the new strategy adopted 
has been successful, with a high level 
of repeat business being secured with 
existing blue chip clients and a major 
student accommodation scheme in 
Leicester recently being awarded to 

the building division. The civils division 
continues to operate predominantly in 
the power and industrial sectors.

During the year several legacy contracts 
were resolved, but the three that remain 
have incurred further cost overruns, due 
to completion delays. Significant claims 
for losses incurred on these particular 
contracts are currently being pursued.

Recent contract awards contribute 
to management’s optimism that the 
recovery in both divisions is now under 
way.

STUART PROUD
MANAGING DIRECTOR, CIvILS AND NMCNOMENCA

CIVILS

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Develop existing client relationship 

and opportunities within the energy 
sector for Heavy Civil Engineering and 
Flood Defence works <£5m.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Development of a significant 

Civils business within our defined 
geographical areas servicing the 
Energy, Education and Public sectors. 
Expansion of our existing small 
works maintenance capability to new 
industrial clients.
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The building division was awarded this 
contract following a negotiated tender 
with East Midlands Housing Association 
having previously worked with this client 
on numerous schemes. 

The project was the renovation and 
conversion of a derelict Victorian shoe 
factory located in South Wigston, 
Leicestershire which was unoccupied for 
over twenty years. The transformation 
culminated in 12 affordable social 
housing duplex apartments across 4 
floors. The apartments were Sustainable 

Homes Level 3 and Lifetime Homes 
compliant and the external façade 
remained true to its former glory.

“Can I take the opportunity to thank 
you and your team for the effort that 
has been expended in carrying out the 
project and for the way in which all the 
issues with the existing building have 
been addressed and dealt with. The 
confines of the site, the complexities of 
the layout and the standard of finishes 
that have been achieved, are something 
that you should all be proud of. Thanks 

for your help and the attitude that has 
been present, right from the initial 
meeting.”

David Taylor, Ridge & Partners

BUILDING CASE STUDY – CANAL STrEET bUILdING CoNVErSIoN: TUrNING LoCAL HISTory INTo NEW, AffordAbLE HoUSING.

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK
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HIGHWAYS

GEOFF POYzER  
MANAGING DIRECTOR – HIGHWAYS AND UTILITIES

“The 2014 result showed an increased margin on prior year, but 
is down on budget due to reduced turnover caused by the delayed 
start on two projects. The secured order book for 2015 is ahead of 
budgeted turnover for the year and I am optimistic that 2015 will 
be successful and profitable.”

 

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Optimise opportunities from existing 

Frameworks, including Bristol 
MetroBus, SE Wales and YORcivils. 
Continue to target strategic schemes 
c£5m to £10m and long-term 
frameworks especially with local 
government, Universities, select 
Developers and the Energy sector.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Development of a significant 

Highways business within the UK 
servicing additional client base 
including the Highways Agency, 
Airports (Landside), as well as 
providing our expertise in high quality 
public realm improvement schemes 
and Cycle Super Highways.

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Broaden relationship with Electricity 

Northwest and Western Power 
Distribution to expand services 
provided.

•	 Develop existing relationship with 
CityFibre to secure further £multi-

million fibre optic schemes and obtain 
a significant Virgin Media contract.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Further develop cable installation and 

fibre jointing capabilities, maximising 
opportunities with existing client base 
as part of the superfast broadband 
investment programme. 

•	 Expand into the electricity sector, 
focusing on existing clients ENW and 
WPD.

UTILITIES

WWW.NORTHMID.CO.Uk STOCk CODE: NMD

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue in the utilities division increased 
by 11.2% to £21.92 million (2013 £19.71 
million) but as a result of losses incurred 
on the BDUK broadband rollout projects for 
Carillion Telent the division returned a loss 
of £0.75 million (2013 £0.22 million profit).

The BDUK schemes initially seemed to 
be a logical and attractive extension to 
the existing works programme, but the 
scope of works changed, and the decision 
was made to terminate the contract. This 
happened at the end of February 2015.

The division has recently resecured the 
Virgin Media frameworks for the North 
West and Yorkshire areas and continues to 
undertake frameworks for Electricity North 
West, KCom and City Fibre Holdings.

“A disappointing result for 2014, resulting primarily from the performance of the Broadband UK 
Framework. A full review of the framework has been completed and withdrawal from commercially 
unviable regions has been completed. 2015 promises to show a return to profitability following the 
successful award of VirginMedia frameworks in the North West and Yorkshire, which will exceed 
budgeted turnover.”

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Increased infrastructure spend has 
benefitted the highways division with 
revenue increasing by 94.8% to £24.97 
million (2013 £12.82 million) with 
profitability climbing by 54.5% to £0.34 
million (2013 £0.22 million).

The division has consolidated its position 
in the Midlands and the North and is now 
engaged on a controlled expansion into 
the South West with the recent award of 
a framework by Bristol City. On the back 
of recent performance clients are now 
considering the division for contracts 
of a higher notational value. The recent 

award of £10 million Leeds to Bradford 
Super Cycleway is an example.

The division has a current order book 
of £27 million for delivery this year and 
that will provide an excellent platform for 
further growth.
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The former mining site of Gedling 
Colliery was deserted approximately 
twenty years ago by British Coal after 
ceasing activity in 1991. The 300 acre site 
was then acquired by Gedling Borough 
Council with the aim of transforming it 
into a destination country park. 

Included in this was the construction of 
a conservation area with a rich diversity 
of wildlife and a network of paths, trails 
and viewpoints for the public. North 
Midland Construction were selected 
to undertake the £1 million first phase 
of the works to make the site safe for 
members of the public to enter. 

The scope of works included:

•	 Site clearance including: grubbing 
out and removal of tree roots and 
vegetation; removal of redundant post 
and wire fencing; removal of debris, 
including partially buried metal bars 
from reinforced concrete, bricks/
concrete to surface etc.

•	 Earthworks: re-grading, importing 
sub soil

•	 Improvements/repairs to drainage 
system: replacement of manhole 
covers, repair of manhole chambers, 
erection of grilles to headwalls, fixing 
grilles to drainage structures etc.

•	 Construction of footpath, access road, 
haul road and car park construction

•	 Erection of new fencing, gates, 
seating, signage, footbridges etc.

•	 Installation of street furniture (signs, 
seating, litter bins, lifebuoys).

•	 Subsoil cultivation, fertilizing and 
seeding works to approximately 
20,000m2 of land. 

IMPROVING PARk PLANT LIFE 
The ground within the park had been 
too contaminated, high volume of clay 
which hampered growth of natural 
vegetation. To encourage plant life NMC 
imported 4,500 tonnes of tested subsoil 
imported onto site from a local source 
and distributed to the verges and areas 
of existing ground where plant life was 
limited or nonexistent due to its previous 
conditions.

“We are delighted to be supporting 
Gedling Borough Council’s ambition to 
design, create and develop a destination 

Country Park. This site is of historic 
significance and the local residents 
to benefit immeasurably from the 
enhancement. We are proud to be a part 
of this exciting change”.

Geoff Poyzer - Managing Director 
Highways & Utilities Division

HIGHWAYS CASE STUDY –  
GEdLING CoUNTry PArk: TrANSforMING A forMEr MINING SITE INTo A SAfE, PUbLIC PLACE 

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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NMCNOMENCA

“NMCNomenca have achieved another excellent result. Whilst 
doing this we have continued to deliver at frontier levels of 
performance for our clients.

This improvement has been achieved by a dedicated, loyal and 
incredibly resilient workforce whose efforts of out-performance 
continue to amaze.”

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Secure AMP6 Framework 

Opportunities with Anglian Water. 
Further development of our unique 
‘Fleet of Foot’ ‘One Stop Shop’ turnkey 
business servicing Severn Trent Water 
and Anglian Water.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 The provision of Programme 

Management, Civils and MEICA 
Design of Non-Infrastructure, 
Infrastructure and Asset Maintenance 
across both clean and wastewater. 
Leaders in Customer Service 
experience, Collaborative planning 
and TOTEX (Optimum whole life cost) 
solution based Outcomes.

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

STUART PROUD
MANAGING DIRECTOR, NMCNOMENCA AND CIvILS
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The division has had another exceptional 
year with profitability escalating by 17.1% 
to £2.89 million (2013 £2.46 million) on 
revenue increased by 9.2% to £86.91 
million (2013 £79.62 million).

The division was engaged on AMP5 
frameworks for Severn Trent, Anglian 
Water and other water-related business. 
It is a member of the E5 consortium, 
which is engaged to deliver the £200 
million programme of major projects for 
Severn Trent Water. The E5 programme 
will be completed in 2015. Work also 

commenced during the year on the £37.5 
million project with Laing O’Rourke 
Imtech to construct a 137ml reinforced 
concrete storage reservoir at Ambergate 
in Derbyshire for Severn Trent.

As the results demonstrate, the division 
continues to deliver continued efficiencies 
and innovation for its clients and that faith 
has been repaid with the reappointment 
of NMCNomenca by Severn Trent Water 
to undertake, as a partner, its AMP6 
programme. This will underpin the future 
growth of the division.
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FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK

For the next four years until spring 2018; 
NMCNomenca will be working with 
Severn Trent Water on the multimillion 
pound refurbishment of Ambergate 
Reservoir. 

Being commissioned over 100 years ago, 
the Victorian reservoir is now nearing 
the end of its life. Severn Trent Water 
has invested twenty years in conducting 
studies as to whether refurbish or replace 
the asset. Construction of a new reservoir 
was chosen as the best engineering 
and economic solution and construction 
works commenced in April 2014.

NMCNomenca will be replacing 
the existing reservoir with two new 
structures, which together will increase 
the storage capacity of the reservoir. 

The first structure will be built next to 
the existing reservoir at 138m long and 
100m wide. This will be able to store two 
thirds of the required capacity for the 
completed project. When this is brought 
into service; the existing structure will 
be demolished and building works on the 
second reservoir will commence within 
its footprint.

With 100,000m3 of material needed to be 
excavated over the life of the scheme, 
this will be designated and stockpiled for 
re-profiling of the site on completion. All 
rock that is dug will be crushed on site to 
provide a suitable fill material, as will the 
concrete from the old reservoir when it is 
demolished.

NMCNOMENCA CASE STUDY – AMbErGATE rESErVoIr: HISTory IN THE MAkING

PUTTING THE CUSTOMER FIRST.
A Community Liaison Group has been 
set up to represent members of the local 
community and other stakeholders who 
may be affected by construction activities.
At the meetings, the group are provided 
with details of project proposals, and an 
update on progress and future activities 
on a regular basis.

This provides an opportunity to discuss 
any matters of concern with the 
Ambergate Project Team; give feedback 
on how the works are received within the 
community and what impact the project 
has on local residents.

The group has formed a sub-committee 
to develop opportunities for Community 
Support, and the committee will receive 
and consider requests for funding 
of local initiatives which will provide 
a significant and lasting legacy for 
the villages which are the immediate 
neighbours of the Ambergate Reservoir.

Additionally the Ambergate team started 
their community support initiative by 
providing help to the organisers of the 
‘Whatstandwell Festival’ which took 
place in June 2014. Responding to a 
request for assistance from the Festival 
Committee, NMCNomenca provided: 
safety barriers, a refrigerator and stand-
by lighting generator to keep revellers 
safe during the festivities.
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NOMENCA

SHORT TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Secure Framework Opportunities 

with: South East Water Capital 
Delivery Partner Q2 2015, United 
Utilities Chemical Dosing Q2 2015, 
Yorkshire Water MEICA Q2 2015 and 
Severn Trent Water Chemical Dosing 
Q2 2015.

•	 Retain the following Framework 
Opportunities: Wessex Water Capital 
Delivery Partner Q2 2015, South 
West Water – STC Maintenance and 
Operation and Yorkshire Water – 
Chemical dosing Framework.

MEDIUM TO LONG TERM STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES
•	 Development of a unique ‘One Stop 

Shop’ providing design services, 
turnkey engineering construction, 
products, service & maintenance and 
asset operation service to the following 
sectors: UK Water Companies, 
Government Agencies, Industrial 
Sector, Energy Sector 
and International.

ANDY LANGMAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR, NOMENCA

2014 Nomenca continued to improve our regional office strategy 
employing, training and developing local resources as part of our 
long term People Succession Plan.

We maintain our focus on excellence in customer satisfaction, 
delivering a complete service from Feasibility Studies, Design, 
Installation, Commissioning, Plant Operation, Maintenance and 
Optimisation.

We have also concentrated on our Product and Offsite 
manufacturing capabilities to deliver Health & Safety, 
Environmental, Quality and Commercial benefits to our 
customers. Within our manufacturing facilities we are 
implementing the EFQM (European Foundation for Quality 
Management) Excellence Model which encourages cooperation, 
collaboration and innovation as an overarching framework for 
developing sustainable excellence.

On behalf of the Board I would like to thank our customers and 
supply chain for their continued support and our valued people 
for their inspiration and vital contribution to our business.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The mechanical and electrical subsidiary 
continues to operate strongly with 
profitability rising 14.1% to £0.90 million 
(2013 £0.79 million) on a revenue 
increased by 10.8% to £43.61 million 
(2013 £39.35 million).

The subsidiary continues to grow from 
the foundations of its local office network 
and frameworks in the water and related 
sectors, such as for the Environment 
Agency. Nomenca, for example, has been 
recently engaged on flood alleviation 
works in the Somerset Levels after the 
previous problems experienced there. 
Work is currently emanating from twenty 

six different frameworks and 92% of 
revenue is framework generated. This 
year is the commencement of the AMP6 
programme for the water companies and 
several key frameworks have already 
been secured.

However, several awards are still 
outstanding and the prospects for 
Nomenca to increase its market share 
of the AMP6 programme nationwide are 
extremely encouraging.

The design services capability continues 
to show good growth, along with the 
repair and maintenance capability. Both 
of these disciplines are seen as key 
drivers of growth for the future.

Nomenca has now grown to become 
a significant force in the supply of 
mechanical and electrical services to 
the water and water related industries. 
The prospects for further growth on the 
back of the AMP6 programme, which 
will involve a proportionally higher spend 
on mechanical and electrical works, are 
very promising.
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Nomenca delivered major time and cost 
savings for United Utilities at Barrow 
Wastewater Treatment Works, where 
automation creates agricultural products 
out of sludge.

A key client driver which is changing the 
water industry is the implementation of 
offsite construction; due to efficiencies 
and savings afforded through the 
approach. Nomenca adopted their SAFE 
approach (skilled assembly in a factory 
environment) at their manufacturing 
facilities in Warrington to complete 
the majority of the project delivery. 
By embracing offsite manufacturing 
andinstallation techniques the project 

delivered the following significant 
reductions:

•	 Automated desludging

•	 25% programme savings

•	 Ready in three days, not six weeks

•	 Clients opening eyes to savings

The project involved installing a fully 
automated desludge system to replace 
the existing temporary centrifuge on 
site.The team supplied, installed, tested 
and commissioned new centrifuges 
and strain presses to process the 
sludge,along with all the accompanying 
equipment. The system can process 

2,600 cubic metres of sludge per week 
over five eight hour days.

The onsite programme for this was 
initially 16 weeks.At outline design stage, 
Nomenca’s team identified a number 
of cost and timesavinginnovations that 
could be provided through the use of 
modular construction. In all, the CAPEX 
benefit for United Utilities from taking 
this approach was about 5 per cent of 
the value of the entire scheme.

NOMENCA LIMITED CASE STUDY – bArroW WWTW: offSITE bUILd AT Work IN WATEr

READ MORE ABOUT LOREM IPSUM 
ON	PAGES	••	AND	••	

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NMGROUPPLC.CO.UK
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kEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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1.00%2012

2014

2013

2012

2014 (1.54%)
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2 times

FINANCIAL TARGET THREE YEAR RECORD

OUR peRfORmance

Revenue growth

Net return on sales

Net return on capital employed (‘ROCE’)*

Dividend cover

* ROCE= Profit before interest and tax/ (Total assets - current liablilities)
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OUR peOpLe

Frequency rate of reportable injuries — 
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RISkS AND UNCERTAINTIES

RISk AREA POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION 

OUR peOpLe RISKS

QUaLIty, 
envIROnment, 
Safety & 
HeaLtH (QeSH) 
peRfORmance

Failure to deliver QESH 
excellence could lead to 
harm to our people and 
others involved in our 
operations and damage to 
the environment

Failure to maintain QESH 
standards could lead 
to customers no longer 
selecting the Group as a 
preferred supplier of services 
and products

•	 Accreditations to ISO 9001, 14001 and 18001 to be maintained

•	 The Group Board monitors performance regularly with a Director with Group 
responsibility for QESH

•	 QESH commitment is communicated via our policy statements and procedures 
contained in the online IMS system. Regular meetings are held by managers to 
evaluate our performance in order to identify improvement opportunities

•	 KPIs are used across the Group to measure performance and guide 
management action plans

•	 We follow a detailed review process for our projects linked to legal and client 
requirements

•	 Our operations are subject to third party and customer audits

•	 ‘Just Culture’ Policy – The cultivation of a culture of Health and Safety and 
Environmental awareness and performance throughout the Group.

•	 Employee Safety Committee

•	 CEMARS accreditation maintained

attRactIOn and 
RetentIOn Of Key 
management

Failure to attract and retain 
key management could 
lead to a lack of necessary 
expertise or lack of continuity 
to execute strategy

•	 The quality of our people helps us to secure challenging and interesting work, 
and this, in turn, helps us to attract and retain talent in the Group

•	 We give management considerable autonomy whilst maintaining short lines of 
communication to senior managers and Group Directors

•	 The Group maintains its ‘Investors in People’ status 

•	 The Group adopts the use of market based compensation, including appropriate 
incentive packages

•	 We offer wide ranging career development opportunities

•	 We continue to expand our geographical footprint to provide access to new highly 
skilled labour resources

•	 We are actively involved in succession planning throughout all parts of the Group

•	 Close relationships have been fostered with educational institutions

•	 Management and leadership training schemes are in place

•	 The Group operates both graduate and apprentice schemes

BReacHeS Of 
OUR etHIcaL 
StandaRdS

Damage to reputation and 
regulatory impact

•	 Senior management are subject to ethical guidelines from their respective 
professional organisations

•	 All employees are issued all Group policies, which are reviewed and updated 
annually

•	 A whistle blowing hotline is available for employees to raise any concerns in 
confidence

•	 We take firm action against any breaches of our ethical standards 

•	 Induction courses have taken place on the Bribery Act

OUR peRfORmance RISKS

OpeRatIng In 
pOtentIaLLy 
cycLIcaL 
maRKetS

Cyclical downturns could 
lead to declines in the 
demand for our products and 
services

•	 We operate our business through 5 diverse operating divisions, reducing our 
exposure to one particular market

•	 We have a broad customer base and geographic spread

•	 We maintain focus on identifying any upcoming weaknesses in the market 
and adjusting investment and pricing strategies appropriately

•	 We manage our exposure to cyclical downturns through developing 
framework agreements with key customers across a range of sectors

HOW THE BUSINESS MANAGES RISk
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RISk AREA POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION

cOntRactIng 
StRategy and 
execUtIOn

Inappropriate contract terms 
leading to unacceptable risks 
relative to potential returns

Failure to comply with 
contract terms leads to 
reputational damage, 
warranty claims or financial 
penalties

•	 We generally avoid large complex fixed price contracting arrangements

•	 We have a contract policy that provides guidance on the parameters under 
which we will enter into contracts to provide services and products

•	 We undertake reviews of the pricing of contracts bids and carry out ongoing 
commercial reviews of terms for certain types of contract

•	 Inductions have taken place with all relevant employees on the new 
Construction Act 2011

•	 The supply chain is regularly reviewed and audited

fInancIaL and cOmpLIance RISKS

InadeQUate 
InSURance 
cOveR

Requirement to fund 
uninsured losses

•	 Prudent levels of insurance cover are maintained

•	 We review exposures to areas where it is not possible to obtain insurance and 
consider alternative ways to reduce our risk to an acceptable level

IntegRIty Of 
fInancIaL 
cOntROLS

Damage to reputation 

Financial loss

Lack of integrity of financial 
information used to manage 
the business leading to 
inappropriate decisions

•	 Financial control frameworks are in place, incorporating preparation and 
review of monthly financial statements, delegation of authority and annual 
financial controls self assessment

•	 We have a comprehensive system of reporting performance to the Board, 
including quarterly reports and more detailed monthly reports

•	 We maintain a high quality finance team by effective recruitment, career 
development and training

•	 External audit is performed on the annual report and accounts

•	 Annual KPI’s are established and regularly maintained

cRedIt RISK, 
LIQUIdIty RISK, 
InteReSt Rate 
RISK

Financial loss •	 Credit risk is maintained by reviewing the creditworthiness of counter parties 
to transactions (see also Note 28) on a case by case basis updated for latest 
information as it becomes available 

•	 Liquidity risk is managed by the maintenance of bank facilities and 
monitoring headroom on a continual basis

•	 Interest rate risk in respect of surplus cash is managed by making deposits 
with suitable financial institutions.

dISRUptIOn 
tO BUSIneSS 
cOntInUIty and 
OpeRatIOnaL 
peRfORmance

Interruption to services  
and facilities

•	 Business continuity policy in place

•	 Back up IT strategy in position

•	 Business interruption insurance in place

cOntRactUaL 
dISpUteS

Profitability

Damage to client 
relationships

•	 Appropriate risk management strategy is in place, which is continually 
reviewed and strengthened by the Audit Committee

•	 Contract and commercial management in accordance with contractual terms 
and conditions

•	 Internal audit/project monitoring function now in place to ensure adherence 
to the contract

•	 Use of external advisors if required

RegULatORy 
adHeRence 

Fine for non-adherence

Litigation

Damage to reputation

•	 Strong internal controls

•	 Regular update of systems to accommodate changes

•	 Strong network of professional advisors

•	 Robust document control

OVERVIEWSTRATEGIC REPORT
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group’s customer service approach is built on the same foundation of 
Delivering Excellence from award to completion; through to service and 
maintenance. Our drive is to understand our client, their stakeholders and 
preferred delivery methods in order to provide them with an unrivalled customer 
experience. This is the basis of our long term relationships. 

Customer excellence begins with Early Contractor Involvement (ECI). We design 
collaboratively with our clients to minimise disruption to customers and third 
parties and consider public safety, traffic management and ensure finished works 
are in keeping with the local area. 

Throughout delivery our Management System ensures that we keep our impacts 
to a minimum through Stakeholder identification and liaison techniques which is 
supplemented through our Customer Liaison team.

Throughout 2015 we are executing a gap analysis from a strategic perspective 
with a resultant action plan on how we can enhance our service offering. This 
will also include a target of achieving Customer Service Excellence® standard 
by the end of 2016. The standard tests the priority customer areas of: delivery, 
timeliness, information, professionalism, and staff attitude. Additionally it looks to 
improving customer insight through experience and robust measurement.

IT IS OUR PEOPLE THAT MAkE THE DIFFERENCE
“Working with your team on the KCOM 
Grounding National Network Overheads 
project has been a pleasure. The team 
have worked exceptionally hard and 
we should all be very proud of their 
achievements. As the project draws to a 
successful close, I thought it timely to offer 
feedback.” 

Andy Whale 
Director KC Engineering

“Earlier this week we completed the 
construction phase of the Grounding 
the National Overheads. I would like to 
personally thank you all for your amazing 
hard work and commitment to achieving 
this. This has been a truly great example of 
team work. Spencer inducted an incredible 
153 people onto the project, which shows 
how many people were involved in the 
digging, cabling and splicing. 31Km of 
duct and fibre have been installed in less 

than 4 months without any accidents or 
reportable incidents which is a huge credit 
to everyone and in particular Paul, Phil and 
Spencer. 

Once again, thank you.”

Andy Whale 
Director KC Engineering

“Now that the Civils aspect of both routes 
on the Yorkshire overheads project are 
complete, I would like to ask that you pass 
my thanks on to Paddy Harkin and John 
Rawlinson, for a job well done.

Both guys were a pleasure to work 
with and their knowledge, dedication 
and professionalism is a credit to your 
company, I believe they were integral to 
the project delivering safely and ahead of 
schedule.”

Mike Poole 
BT MSL Cabling and Jointing Manager

CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE
“As you’ll be aware your cabling team 
completed the Wath – Wakefield job 
Saturday evening/ Sunday morning 
which really was a great effort. When I 
first met with Gareth and Lee a couple of 
weeks ago the program I set with them 
was challenging to say the least and left 
little room for any issues or unexpected 
problems.

Please thank Lee, Gareth and his team for 
their hard work they were a pleasure to 
work with and their knowledge, dedication 
and professionalism is a credit to your 
company.

We have worked with you for many years 
on Civils works but this is the first time we 
have used you to carry out cabling works 
and our experience has been very good. 
I would have no hesitation in contracting 
with you again in the future if the need 
arose or recommending you to carry out 
such works for other companies.”

Mike Poole 
BT MSL Cabling and Jointing Manager

“A phenomenal effort by Gareth, Darren 
& Alex over the last two weeks, in 
achieving our ultimate goal, preChristmas, 
in providing an underground cable to 
replace our failing overheads. Even the 
restrictions imposed by the LA did not 
deter the guys from their task in hand.

Working nights & weekends…they have 
been a pleasure to work with & are fine 
ambassadors for NMC. Would you please 
convey my gratitude to the boys for their 
hard work they have done on this project.”

Keith Elliott - KCOM

“Guys we all work in a world where we 
tend to notice failure and we are slow for 
coming forward to show our praise but 
John has done NMC proud this week with 
his dedicated delivery and professional 
approach to the difficult program of work 

The NM Group is fully committed to our role and responsibilities with CSR. 
We are focused on our responsibility and those of others, being aware of 
and acknowledging how we may impact upon the communities and the 
environment within which we operate.
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that I dropped on him at short notice at 
the start of the week he has obtained early 
starts and it’s been a pleasure to work 
alongside him we have the last few jobs to 
complete tomorrow and no doubt I will fire 
a few more at him before we break up for 
Christmas. Also please pass my thanks on 
to Rob G for his dedication to delivery this 
difficult contract with our ever changing 
goal posts. Thanks for my Christmas bottle 
and all the best to everybody at NMC for 
2014”

Stuart Grant 
Delivery Manager Carillion-telent (Ct JV) 
MidlandsRegion, MWW

“I was speaking to the customer today 
regarding the cable and jointing aspect 
of this job. He was highly pleased with 
the way the duct laying was carried out 
on his property. (duct across car park to 
building). He says the guys were very tidy 
and he was impressed with the way they 
maintained access given that it was a car 
park. He also said they were polite and felt 
the need to praise them.

Nice to get positive feedback eh? It’s 
not often people take the time to make 
compliments. I’m sure you’ll pass it on to 
the crew concerned.”

Dave - KCOM

“A very excellent and fast response which 
has been very much appreciated for 
mobilising extra personnel to accelerate 
the bringing back on line the second set 
of clarifiers as soon as possible, to reduce 
water supply exposure due to flooding 
issues of the Thames at Egham WTW.”

Thames Water

“EA give Nomenca Minor Works Team 
100% Customer Satisfaction for the month.

What is more remarkable is that it has 

been achieved in the most challenging of 
circumstances with the recent extreme 
weather. This is now 100% for 6 consecutive 
months. A fantastic effort by all those 
involved and a very big thank you.”

Environment Agency

“I am pleased to refer to the above project 
and would like to take this opportunity to 
praise the NMCNomenca and the Active 
Tunneling staff and site workers for the 
excellent job they are doing. As you may be 
aware Kington village has a very narrow 
road so this itself has presented, however 
I can only add that they have been very 
helpful and courteous in ensuring that 
property access was one of their main 
concerns. Safety was also of paramount 
importance and the site personnel showed 
great professionalism in all aspects of 
their day to day working. They are a good 
team and I am sure that once the project 
is completed Kington will be so much 
better for the effort they have put in, many 
thanks to all concerned.”

Geoff Wheeler  
Greensleeves, Kington, Worcester

“Please pass on our thanks to Karl Scott 
(NMC) who has worked really hard in 
ensuring the outstanding spine overlays 
for Goldthorpe were delivered on time as 

agreed under difficult situations, which in 
turn has allowed us to virtually deliver all 
of Goldthorpe exchange by end of March 
as per our delivery challenge. Thank you 
a great effort to all involved and great 
partnership working.”

Paul Rowan 
NGA Contractor and Civil Co-Ord. 
Open Reach

“On behalf of the members of the Maun 
Conservation Group and the residents of 
Quarry Lane, I would like to thank you and 
the team involved for the excellent project 
which was completed recently for us on 
the Quarry Lane Local Nature Reserve, 
Mansfield.

The lads on the job worked hard and 
sympathetically to the task in hand, often 
offering their own ideas and going the 
extra mile. All the time, they cheerfully 
welcomed interested Group members 
visiting the site. All other agencies and 
locals are very impressed and we have 
held a grand opening ceremony attended 
by the Environment Agency, Veolia, local 
Councillors, two schools and group 
members.”

Colin Etches 
Chairman Maun Conservation Group
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Tonnes of CO2e
31st Dec 

2013
31st Dec 

2014
Scope 1 (Gas Consumption, Owned Transport, Gas Oil Consumption) 6321.93* 7001.47^

Scope 2 (Electricity) 464.37* 654.02^

Scope 3 (Mandatory) (Business Travel, Waste Disposal, Water Supply / Treatment) 2603.48* 2792.48^

Total Gross Emissions 9389.79* 10447.98^
GHG Removals 0 0
Carbon Credits / Offsets Purchased 0 0
Green Electricity Purchased 0 0

Total Annual Net Emissions 9389.79* 10447.98^

Total gross GHG emissions per unit turnover or revenue (tCO2/£million) 67.94* 69.15^

*Amended figures – after audit and verification by CEMARS 

^Figures awaiting verification audit by CEMARS

1. COMPANY INFORMATION
North Midland Construction is a public 
limited company, incorporated in the UK. 
Registered address is Nunn Close, The 
County Estate, Huthwaite, Sutton-In-
Ashfield, Nottinghamshire, NG17 2HW.

2. REPORTING PERIOD
GHG emissions data for the period 1st 
January 2014 – 31st December 2014.

3. CHANGE IN EMISSIONS
Our emissions have increased in 2014, 
due to the inclusion and measurement of 
more sites and an increase in business. 

4. APPROACH
We have followed DEFRAs guidance on 
Environmental Reporting Guidelines. 
We have used the CEMARS reporting 
portal to collate data for the period. Data 
is gathered to fulfil our requirements 
under the CEMARS (Certified Emissions 
Measurement and Reduction Scheme), 
this system utilises the DEFRA/DECC 
latest conversion factors. 

5. METHODOLOGY
We have reported on all of the emissions 
sources required under the Companies 
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ 
Reports) Regulations 2013. 

6. ORGANISATIONAL BOUNDARY
The operational control consolidation 
approach has been used to account for 
operational emissions with reference 
to the methodology described in the 
GHG Protocol and ISO 14064-1:2006 
standards.

Please note, the GHG emissions are 
for the operational activities of North 
Midland Construction PLC but excluding 
Nomenca Limited who collate their 
emissions data separately and have a 
separate CEMARS registration.

7. OPERATIONAL SCOPES
We have measured our scope 1, 2 and 
significant scope 3 emissions.

8. GEOGRAPHICAL BREAk DOWN
Emissions included from geographical 
areas in which we operate (UK). 

9. TARGETS 
Our emissions target is to reduce our 
GHG emissions, scopes 1, 2 and 3 by 10%. 

10. INTENSITY MEASUREMENT
We have chosen total gross GHG 
emissions per unit turnover of revenue 
(tCO2/£million) as this is a common 
business metric for our industry sector. 

11. EXTERNAL ASSURANCE STATEMENT
Achilles carbon reduction programme 
CEMARS (Certified Emissions 
Measurement and Reduction Scheme) 
will be auditing the data for the 2014 
reporting period in due course in 
accordance with ISO 14064-1:2006, 
and verification will be conducted in 
accordance with ISO 14064-3: 2006 
and the requirements of the CEMARS 
programme.

12. CARBON OFFSETS
We have not purchased any carbon 
credits which reduce our GHG emissions.

13. GREEN TARIFFS
We have not purchased a green tariff 
which reduces our GHG emissions. 

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
CONTINUED

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC (Company)
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Tonnes of CO2e
31st Dec 

2013
 31st Dec 

2014
Scope 1 (Gas Consumption, Owned Transport, Gas Oil Consumption) 787.46* 1146.62^

Scope 2 (Electricity) 173.00* 114.62^

Scope 3 (Mandatory) (Business Travel, Waste Disposal, Water Supply / Treatment) 631.50* 621.33^

Total Gross Emissions 1591.67* 1882.57^
GHG Removals 0 0
Carbon Credits / Offsets Purchased 0 0
Green Electricity Purchased 0 0

Total Annual Net Emissions 1591.67* 1882.57^

Total gross GHG emissions per unit turnover or revenue (tCO2/£million) 42.97* 46.72^

*Amended figures – after audit and verification by CEMARS 

^Figures awaiting verification audit by CEMARS

1. COMPANY INFORMATION
Nomenca Ltd is a subsidiary of the 
North Midland Construction PLC limited, 
incorporated in the UK. Registered 
address is Nunn Close, The County 
Estate, Huthwaite, Sutton-In-Ashfield, 
Nottinghamshire, NG17 2HW.

2. REPORTING PERIOD
GHG emissions data for the period 1st 
January 2014 – 31st December 2014.

3. CHANGE IN EMISSIONS
Our emissions have increased in 2014, 
due to the inclusion and measurement of 
more sites and an increase in business. 

4. APPROACH
We have followed DEFRAs guidance on 
Environmental Reporting Guidelines. 
We have used the CEMARS reporting 
portal to collate data for the period. Data 
is gathered to fulfil our requirements 
under the CEMARS (Certified Emissions 
Measurement and Reduction Scheme), 
this system utilises the DEFRA/DECC 
latest conversion factors. 

5. METHODOLOGY
We have reported on all of the emissions 
sources required under the Companies 
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ 
Reports) Regulations 2013. 

6. ORGANISATIONAL BOUNDARY
The operational control consolidation 
approach has been used to account for 
operational emissions with reference 
to the methodology described in the 
GHG Protocol and ISO 14064-1:2006 
standards.

Please note, the GHG emissions are for 
the operational activities of Nomenca 
Ltd but excluding North Midland 
Construction PLC who collate their 
emissions data separately and have a 
separate CEMARS registration.

7. OPERATIONAL SCOPES
We have measured our scope 1, 2 and 
significant scope 3 emissions.

8. GEOGRAPHICAL BREAk DOWN
Emissions included from geographical 
areas in which we operate (UK). 

9. TARGETS 
Our emissions target is to reduce our 
GHG emissions, scopes 1, 2 and 3 by 10%. 

10. INTENSITY MEASUREMENT
We have chosen total gross GHG 
emissions per unit turnover of revenue 
(tCO2/£million) as this is a common 
business metric for our industry sector. 

11. EXTERNAL ASSURANCE STATEMENT
Achilles carbon reduction programme 
CEMARS (Certified Emissions 
Measurement and Reduction Scheme) 
will be auditing the data for the 2014 
reporting period in due course in 
accordance with ISO 14064-1:2006, 
and verification will be conducted in 
accordance with ISO 14064-3: 2006 
and the requirements of the CEMARS 
programme.

12. CARBON OFFSETS
We have not purchased any carbon 
credits which reduce our GHG emissions.

13. GREEN TARIFFS
We have not purchased a green tariff 
which reduces our GHG emissions. 

NOMENCA LTD
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
CONTINUED

IDENTIFYING AND MANAGING SUSTAINABILITY RISkS
Our focus is to reduce waste, increase 
the re-use of materials, build smarter, 
utilise less non-renewable resources 
and to improve the current environment. 
Our processes are used to ensure early 
identification of environmental risks 
including Waste, Nuisance and Amenity, 
Land Contamination, Wildlife and 
Habitats, Use of Resources, Archaeology 
/Historical, Emissions to Water, 
Energy and Emissions to Air. Certified 
to ISO14001:2004; our processes 
cover 9 categories of environmental 
risk including Waste, Nuisance and 
Amenity, Land Contamination, Wildlife 
and Habitats, Use of Resources, 
Archaeology/Historical, Emissions to 
Water, Energy and Emissions to Air. 
Number of reviewing tools/aids which 
are mandatory, key ones:

•	 Environmental Aspects & Impacts 
Assessment – review of site specific 
environmental conditions, constraints 
and assessment of potential impacts 
and mitigation to create Project 
Aspects Register.

•	 Waste Management Plans – review 
of site specific waste i.e. asbestos, 
Contaminated Waste

ENVIRONMENT
•	 Environmental Aspects Control 

Sheet – Plan and controls to ensure 
Environmental compliance

•	 Design Risk Assessments – Review, 
scoring and reporting of Risk and 
Residual Risk on a Design

•	 Site Risk Assessments – Assessment 
of specific Site Risks associated with 
an activity

•	 Safe Systems of Work – Review, Plan 
and control of site specific/Required 
Safety systems for Permitting, 
Confined Space working, Working at 
Heights, Welfare etc.

•	 Project Aspects Register identifies 
all significant aspects associated 
with the scope of work and project 
location. 

Once risks identified, a series of controls 
established, either through conformance 
to company procedures (such as 
working with water, management of 
fuel oil & chemicals, noise and waste 
management), guidance documents and/
or application of project specific physical 
measures and training. Environmental 
inspections as part of QESH team visits.

MEASURING, MONITORING AND REPORTING 
EMBODIED CARBON FOOTPRINT
We are utilizing DEFRA guidelines to 
measure embodied carbon footprint 
on our chemical dosing products and 

access steelwork. Conversion figures 
are sourced from the following Defra 
reference documents:

•	 Reporting Guidelines to Defra’s 
greenhouse gas (GHG) conversion 
factors for company reporting.

•	 Reporting Guidelines to Defra’s 
greenhouse gas (GHG) conversion 
factors for company reporting - 
annexes.

Due to the diversity of materials on 
chemical dosing systems we have jointly 
agreed with our supply chain to utilise 
the University of Bath Inventory of Carbon 
& Energy (ICE) version 2.0 for embodied 
energy and carbon coefficients.

Our Product design team operate 3D 
Autodesk Software, AutoCAD Inventor, 
Plant 3D and MEP piping software with 
3D laser scanning enabling intelligent 
P&ID’s and models to be generated. 
From these models manufacturing and 
assembly drawings are extracted, as well 
as any cable looming drawings, ensuring 
accurate production information. 
Components are automatically scheduled 
onto our procurement system from the 
3D model with technical specifications 
being retrieved from the electronic 
equipment library;these libraries also 
contain embodied carbon figures. At 
design freeze we are able to extract 
an estimated embodied carbon for the 
materials for the rig or package plant.

Our Production scheduling system 
provides us with estimated man hours 
for production, assembly and test 
activities. All actual labour costs are 
captured on our Tender to Contract 
(T2C) system via electronic time sheets. 
Through our in-house Hiab’s or external 
contract lift specialists embodied carbon 
for delivery is also captured using the 
Environment Agency Carbon Calculator.

An embodied carbon certificate and 
associated report will be issued with 
each delivery, as well as data being 
added to the model as part of our BIM 
6D initiative.
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Our people are our greatest assets, and 
we are responsible for their safety and 
wellbeing.

OUR VISION FOR HEALTH AND SAFETY 
To make our sites and offices the safest 
place to work within the construction 
industry whist delivering an efficient and 
quality service. 

To achieve this we have committed 
ourselves to a strategy based on the 
communication and support of the 
following core beliefs, which are aligned 
with the goals and aspirations of our 
clients and wider supply chain and 
supports our longstanding message  
“IF IT’S NOT SAFE, DON’T DO IT”.

CORE BELIEFS
•	 Everyone has the right to go home 

safely at the end of the day.

•	 We each have personal responsibility 
for health and safety and wellbeing of 
our selves and others.

•	 We have a responsibility to learn from 
information that we collect.

•	 Supply chain integration is essential 
to achieving our goals.

•	 Good health and safety performance 
is business critical.

Health and safety will always remain at 
the forefront of our business which is 
echoed from the Board through all levels 
of the organisation. 

CORE OBjECTIVES
Our 5 year plan for health and safety 
establishes our vision and identifies the 
key focus areas and is very focused on 
the responsibility of learning using this 
information to drive improvements in our 

HEALTH AND SAFETY
health and safety performance. To allow 
us to deliver our vision and core beliefs 
we have identified and established our 
core objectives.

•	 Our employees and the wider supply 
chain have the competence to identify 
hazards and make the correct 
decisions to ensure that the risks are 
properly controlled.

•	 We will have strong and effective 
leadership.

•	 Health and safety issues will be 
effectively communicated.

•	 Our workforce will be fully engaged in 
Health and Safety.

•	 We will raise the standards and 
continually improve performance.

•	 We will integrate Health and Safety 
into our business culture.

BELIEFS AND BEHAVIOURS
The alignment of beliefs and the 
resultant changes in behaviour are 
essential to drive our culture to the 
next level and in order to deliver this we 
are developing a Belief Based Safety 
System: SHIELD (Safety Health Integrity 
Education Leadership Direction). SHIELD 
is a process for engaging our employees, 
sub-contractors and others and is used 
to develop a climate in which our safety 
culture can become recognised as class 
leading.

The core safety core team made up 
from health and safety professionals 
and operation staff review information 
collected and analysing this to produce a 
dynamic improvement process. Acting on 
live data gathered from our employees 
and the wider supply chain; we establish 
break out groups to develop individual 
short term action plans and trial new 
processes prior to full implementation.
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An annual safety improvement plan 
has been developed and maintained 
to implement and communicate the 
continuous improvement process 
and establish and deliver shorter to 
medium term plans whilst ensuring 
alignment with both our and our client’s 
long term plans this plan focuses on 
specific key areas such as procedures, 
communication and culture with each 
area being allocated to a member of the 
safety team to develop and improve.

Weekly Health and Safety conference 
calls are completed to drive continuous 
improvement around the business and 
from these calls short term actions such 
as clarification on a particular issue 
or improvements as a result of a short 
term trend or incident are captured and 
delivered whilst longer term actions are 
feed into the improvement plan identified 
above.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING
The impact of the wellbeing of 
our people across all roles of the 
organisation is high on our agenda from 
workplace illnesses to mental health.

We conduct health screening upon 
commencement of employment with the 

group which is coordinated through HR as 
to treatment, progression and follow up. 

We continually care for our employees 
through rolling health surveillance, 
particularly for those who may be at 
risk of harm through work activity. 
Employees are therefore required to 
attend regular health surveillance 
meetings as requested and to inform the 
company of any medical conditions that 
may affect their work or that would be 
exacerbated by their work.

As part of our toolbox talks NM Group 
provides guidance and advice on activities 
that need to be monitored whilst on site 
such as vibration white finger, COSHH, 
ear defenders, asbestos etc.

In the event that a member of our team 
is absent for a prolonged period, we 
manage their rehabilitation and absence 
through:

•	 Take positive action to improve 
attendance through well thought out 
rehabilitation programmes.

•	 Rehabilitate employees to return to 
work at their own pace or to facilitate 
an earlier return if desired.

•	 Promote early intervention for known 
conditions

•	 We also have the support of 
occupational health advisors should 
any employee feel the need to discuss 
a health issue with their line manager.

LOOk AHEAD THROUGH 2015 AND BEYOND
Towards the end of 2014 saw the 
beginning of implementing our ‘Low Risk 
High Frequency Activities’ initiative. 

Whilst our accident statistics are good, 
from investigations into minor accidents 
and detailed analysis of our health and 
safety leading indicators such as;

•	 Near misses and positive 
interventions

•	 Accident severity and potential 
accident severity ratings

We identified that there is a trend of 
minor accidents associated around 
perceived low risk, high frequency 
activities such as storage of materials, 
cutting cables and general site access, 
some of which could have been more 
serious if the circumstances around the 
event had been slightly different.

Our Safety team investigate the root 
cause behind all incidents identifying 
areas for improvement and reduce 
reoccurrence.

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
CONTINUED
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Male Female

2014 GENDER PROFILE

8.9%

91.1%

White British

Other Include: Asian Bangladeshi, Asian Indian, Asian Other, 
Black Caribbean,Black African, Black Other  

White Irish White Other Asian Pakistani

2014 ETHNIC ORIGIN
PROFILE

Anglican
Other Include: Christian (NOS), Greek Orthodox, Hindu, Methodist,
Muslim, Orthodox, Pentecost, Presbyterian, Protestant,
Roman Catholic, Sikh, United Church, Other, None, Not Disclosed          

Baptist Buddhism Christian

2014 BELIEF PROFILE

In order to address the findings of 
the analysis we have implemented 
an integrated approach across the 
three areas that we believe will drive 
the next step change to improve our 
performance, these areas being;

•	 Risk Assessment

•	 Risk Awareness

•	 Acceptable standards

Further learning and implementation of 
change is high on our agenda for 2015 
with a dedicated team being put in place 
with representatives across all areas of 
the business concentrating on this one 
area. 

We are also working with HR in re-
evaluating the health and wellbeing 
strategy to increase the resilience of 
our people; maintaining a sustainable 
workforce.

PEOPLE

We commit to conduct business 
ethically with integrity and passion 
and this is reflected within our values. 
This is achieved by a participative and 
consultative leadership and management 
style that embraces honesty, trust and 
integrity to achieve our principal aims as 
described below.

•	 Customer Service Delivery

•	 Environment

•	 Health and Safety 

•	 People

•	 Supply Chain

•	 Sustainability

DELIVERING RESULTS THROUGH OUR PEOPLE
ATTRACTING THE BEST TALENT 
The objective is to continue to ensure 
that we attract talented individuals who 
can demonstrate and live our values 
and behaviours to deliver our business 
results. This has been achieved by 
working closely on our recruitment 
process including integrating our values 
into search and selection methods.

We have been working closely with 
schools and colleges to attract 
apprentices to join our business ensuring 
our talent pipeline is continually flowing. 
Growing our talent from within continues 
to be our strategy. 

We are very proud of our fabulous 
‘length of service record’ demonstrating 
the Group’s positive relationship with 
employees once they have joined the 
Group. Using the 9 box grid we have 
identified mentors and coaches to 
support our new recruits, inducting them 
effectively into our organisation ensuring 
a quick return on our investment in them. 
Our target is for them to be proud to 
live and breathe the NM Group’s culture 
within a short period of time. In 2015 
we will introduce a specific coaching 
and mentoring training programme to 
continue to embed the coaching culture 
being created within the Group.

RETENTION OF OUR PEOPLE
We are a people business, and our 
people’s technical skills are of the 
highest standard. Delivery on time and 
to a consistent standard is key however, 
the NM Group must continue to deliver 
with the right positive attitude and with 
a clear health and safety focus - this 
is fundamental to our business model 
and success. To this end our strategy 
for retention remains unchanged and 
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
CONTINUED

is the key priority for the business. To 
consistently deliver a high quality service 
to our clients we have a number of key 
objectives:

•	 Continuous Identification and 
Structured Development Planning for 
Key Talent

•	 We have focused on identifying 
and spotting talented individuals 
for both technical and leadership 
development. The use of development 
centres and bespoke leadership and 
development training have been 
a success during this year. This 
has been underpinned by a robust 
performance management system.

•	 The Expansion of our technical and 
soft skills through our NM Academy

•	 The NM Academy provides a blend 
of soft skills and technical skills with 
access for all. Key topics delivered 
through bite size training across the 
Group help increase individuals’ skills 
portfolio.

•	 Embedding a coaching and mentoring 
culture

We have created a strategy to embrace a 
coaching culture throughout the Group. 
We are looking forward to implementing 
a coaching and mentoring training 
programme over the next 12 months.

ENGAGEMENT
Complementing our skills development 
has been the focus on continuing to 
improve and embed our communication 
and engagement strategies with our 
people. This has been achieved by 
working closely with Leaders, Managers 
and Team Leaders to ensure they lead by 
example in their day to day application 
of communication. The feedback from 
the Investors in People assessment 
confirmed that employees understood 
the Group’s direction and how they could 
contribute to its success.

Throughout our Leadership and 
Development programmes employees 
have been encouraged to identify and 
develop individual business improvement 
projects. The brief is simply to ensure that 
we continue to improve our service to our 
clients. Through the empowerment and 
engagement of our teams we have seen 
the introduction of a range of innovations 
contributing to our success. 

LEADERSHIP AND DEVELOPMENT
Identifying the key leadership skills, 
knowledge and behaviours to ensure 
there is a consistent leadership and 
management approach throughout 
the Group continues to be our golden 
thread theme. Through an engagement 
and participative working group, 
the leadership and management 
strategy has been agreed and is being 
successfully implemented to ensure all 
our leaders provide the inspiration and 
motivation for their teams. 

Our challenge continues to be to strive 
to achieve a consistent leadership 
style throughout the Group. We are 
committed to reviewing and developing 
our corporate governance practices; 
regularly challenging our infrastructure 
and ensuring Leaders and Managers 
display role model behaviour to ensure 
CSR is part of our day to day business.

We are embedding a progressive 
Leadership Strategy which will 
strengthen our consistency for the future. 
The key focus will be the introduction 
of a progressive but aligned leadership 
and development programme for 

potential managers through to directors. 
Development centres and in-house 
coaching are fundamental to the success 
of our strategy.

PEOPLE 
To summarise, this year has been one 
of ensuring the challenge of our policies 
and practices. Reviews have been 
undertaken and updates made to ensure 
that they can support the achievement of 
business results for today and the future. 
The focus has then shifted to the reality 
of living the policies. To achieve this we 
have focused particularly on:-

•	 Our Leaders, Managers and Team 
Leaders to ensure they have the 
competence to inspire execution of 
the highest standard from all our 
employees

•	 Our employees to create equal 
opportunities and access for all.

SUPPLY CHAIN

SUppLy cHaIn and paRtneRS – tHe gOLden team
The alignment and integration of our 
suppliers and partners ensures that our 
clients receive a consistent standard. 
The approach is achieved through:

•	 Understanding the organisational 
vision, values and strategy

•	 Consistency of application from 
suppliers and partners ensures a 
seamless service

NM Group Supply Chain Management 
philosophy is built in line with our core 
values: 

“Tomorrow’s competitive 
advantage will be borne 
out of the value and 
innovations created 
through the way we 
construct and manage 
our supply chain, today.”
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2014 HIGHLIGHTS 
Clients continue to drive innovation and 
efficiency as key drivers for delivery. 
To meet these challenges we continue 
to invest in our Supply Chain and 
Procurement department (SC&P) with 
a restructure during 2014. This is to 
continue our focus on engaging with 
our partners and ensure that our supply 
chain is sustainable to meet customer 
demand; bringing value through cross 
fertilisation of ideas and knowledge.

IMPLEMENTATION OF BS11000 COLLABORATIVE 
BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS
Our team are currently pursuing 
accreditation to BS11000 the standard for 
collaborative working across the supply 
chain, along with our Quality department.

Benefits of implementing the standard 
include: 

•	 Successful collaboration with partners

•	 A formal framework that can be 
tailored to suit specific requirements 

•	 Create a neutral platform for mutual 
benefit with business partners

•	 Define roles and responsibilities to 
improve decision making processes

•	 Share cost, risks, resources and 
responsibilities

•	 Provide staff with wider training 
opportunities 

•	 Build better relationships that lead to 
improved results

•	 Identify & pursue new business 
streams

•	 Drives sustainability 

•	 Encourages innovation 

The Stage 1 and Stage 2 assessments 
for BS11000 are programmed in before 

the end of 2015. During the preparation 
process for the assessments it has 
become evident that the Group already 
performs to the requirements necessary 
which we consider to be ’business 
as usual’. Therefore we are confident 
of achieving the standard at the first 
attempt. 

Our concerted efforts to engage across 
companies is evident through assisting 
two of our closest supply chain partners 
achieve CHAS certification. In addition 
we provided partners with access to our 
Internal Management System On-Line 
(IMSOL) a number of years ago. By 
doing so this allows our supply chain 
to view their details on our Approved 
Vendor Listing (AVL), view: enquiries, 
orders, drawings and specifications, 
report their own: communications, near 
misses, non-conformances and positive 
interventions. 

All reporting (Communications, Near 
Misses, Non Conformances and Positive 
Interventions) via the IMSOL system is 
recorded, trended, analysed and reported 

to the relevant Management Boards with 
Improvement plans instigated to maintain 
high quality service to our end client. 

We continue to pursue preferred 
supplier agreements with our strategic 
supply chain. Developing and building 
on longstanding relationships and 
formalising agreements to the benefit 
of all parties. Committing to working 
with selected suppliers at a programme 
level rather than a project level and 
in doing so enjoying the benefits of 
leveraged procurement opportunities via 
a consolidated supply chain.

LOOk AHEAD THROUGH 2015
The following targets have been set  
this year 

•	 Further operational support 
to outperform the challenging 
commercial environment in the 
markets we serve.

•	 Identification and elimination of waste 
across our office functions.

•	 Two strategic Group supply chain 
forums have been planned to continue 
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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and improve our communication and 
engagement with our partners. 

•	 Regular monitoring of the 
sustainability of our supply chain. 

•	
SUSTAINABILITY

CORPORATE COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY
We aim to provide clarity, openness 
and honesty in all aspects of our 
organisational procedure, work practice 
and activities. By communicating 
with and involving those who help our 
organisation to run effectively, we can 
strive to create a more sustainable 
culture of business, both internally and 
externally in the marketplace.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT IN SUSTAINABILITY
People are our greatest asset. We 
recognise that their behaviours 
and choices are crucial to our good 
sustainability performance. As such, 
fundamental to our approach is the 
knowledge, competence and skills 
of our workforce in the application of 
our processes through awareness and 
structured training.

To support this we have been IIP 
accredited for the last 10 years and 
currently hold Gold level status. In 2014 
a total of 1168 days training, covering a 
variety of disciplines, have been provided 
for employees across the business. The 
continual development of staff training 
gained additional emphasis in 2014 
as it was captured by a new corporate 
objective. Training courses of note include 
on-going Environmental Awareness 
training course, SSSI Modules and 
Induction, Listed Building works, Habitats, 
Flora and Fauna. Training takes place 
through a number of routes, both formal 
and informal including:

•	 In-house Training Academy and our 
bespoke Management Development 
Programme;

•	 Graduate training programme and 
apprentice scheme;

•	 On the job: Tool box talks, Inductions 
and Lunch ‘n Learn sessions;

•	 Environmental alert database 
circulation; 

•	 Feedback and lessoned learned 
sessions relating to any incidents, 
near misses and awards; and

•	 Use of e-learning and refresh 
sessions.

ROLE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY IN SUSTAINABILITY
We identify and track good practice 
through maintenance of an Innovation 
database, production of case studies and 
updates to our procedures and corporate 
risk register. Recent examples of new 
techniques we have developed include:

•	 Installation of polypropylene sealed 
manholes and inspection chambers 
following trials and approval by 
Anglian water. Key sustainability 
benefits include 50% reduction in 
embodied carbon, cost savings of 
over £1000 (for a typical 3m deep 
chamber), No Rework - guaranteed 
sealed, construction (less excavation 
& backfill) in less than two hours.

•	 Changes to the van fleet: new 
vehicles are more than 60% fuel 
efficient than our standard vehicles, 
reducing our carbon footprint through 
approximately 60-70 miles to the 
gallon. Increasing the efficiency of 
vehicles has also been supported 
through installing speed restrictors.
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•	 Use of technology: promotion and use 
of Google Apps package in the office 
enables video calling direct from email 
thus allowing conference calls to take 
place much easier than previously.

•	 Use of IR Poly prep pipework and 
welding techniques.

•	 3D Laser scanning, 3D Intelligent 
modelling and use of fully Immersive 
Virtual Reality.

SUSTAINABILITY THROUGHOUT THE LIFE CYCLE OF 
SERVICES
We recognise the through life 
sustainability impact of our services. 
We are currently working towards the 
adoption of best practice standards and 
guidance in accordance with BS8903 
and the CIRIA Guide to Sustainable 
Procurement in Construction.

We have direct control of our operational 
impacts and the indirect impacts from 
our supply chain. However, we also 
recognise the important role we play in 
optimising the design, use, occupation 
and operation of the facilities we 

design and build and the associated 
sustainability impact and benefits from 
this. We aim to constructively challenge 
the client at the early stages of feasibility 
and design to optimise TOTEX and 
sustainability outcomes and to work 
closely through post construction training 
and support to realise operational 
benefits. For the last 9 years we have 
held quarterly forums with our strategic 
supply chain engaging with them in 
promoting sustainable businesses and 
supply chains. These forums also provide 
an opportunity for suppliers to present 
innovative materials and products which 
provide Environmental, Health & Safety, 
Quality and Cost benefits. Current 
initiatives include:

•	 We are members of the Buy Recycled 
Code; 

•	 We try to use recycled aggregate as 
much as possible, however, where 
we use quarry products we require 
suppliers to meet the requirements 
of the BRE BES 6001 framework 

standard for Responsible Sourcing of 
Construction Products, or similar,

•	 We have a Timber Purchasing Policy. 
All timber products are certified 
under Forest Stewardship Council 
Scheme; and

•	 We benchmark our performance 
against the Sustainable Procurement 
Task Force Flexible Framework.

The Strategic Report was approved and 
authorised for issue by the Board on  
17 April 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

R. Moyle 
Chairman & Chief Executive

 
 

D.A. Taylor 
Finance Director & Company Secretary
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Name: Sam Simons

University: Nottingham Trent University

Course: BEng Civil Engineering

Placement(s): 2014 Graduate

Division: NMCNomenca

Site base: Raynesway, Derby

In summer 2014, I graduated from 
Nottingham Trent University after 
completing my Bachelors in Civil 
Engineering and was formally offered 
a position as a Graduate Engineer at 
NMCNomenca, following a placement 
year in 2013. Since arriving back I have 
been placed on several water projects 
around the East Midlands for Severn 
Trent Water. These have mainly involved 
works relating to sewer rehabilitation, 
which I first gained experience in on my 
placement year. 

I have put to good use the skills that I 
have acquired over my year placement 
with North Midland Construction such 
as working with survey equipment, 
calculating required materials, managing 

product documents, coordinating designs 
and using AutoCAD. This has provided me 
with the opportunity for a mixture of both 
site and office based work. 

Currently I am working on several 
water projects that are at the very 
early stages of development. My job 
role has broadened to encompass the 
organisation of site investigations and the 
implementation of risk assessments and 
method statements. This work will aid in 
determining the correct course of action 
to be taken for each project and is an 
integral part of project development. This 
has provided me with new responsibilities 
and challenged me to meet strict project 
deadlines. 

I am also making progress to attaining 
chartered status with the Institute of Civil 
Engineers. North Midland Construction 
has provided a tutor to assist me with 
my continued professional development 
and will provide all the support I need to 
achieve these personal ambitions. 

PEOPLE CASE STUdy 

“North Midland 
Construction has 
provided a tutor to  
assist me with my 
continued professional 
development and will 
provide all the support 
I need to achieve these 
personal ambitions.”

FIND OUT MORE ON OUR WEBSITE AT: 
WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROBERT MOYLE BSc (Hons), CEng, FICE 
CHAIRMAN & CHIEF ExECUTIvE

STRENGTHS
•	 Leadership to provide growth and development of the Group
•	 Introduction and development of strong CSR Policy
•	 Development of our people
•	 Establishment of Group Wide IMS with accreditation to the 3 ISO Standards
•	 Attainment of Investors in People Gold standard
•	 Key monitoring of emerging markets for Group development

Robert graduated from Birmingham University in 1973 with an Honors Degree in Civil 
Engineering and then joined the Group as a Site Engineer. His progression through the following 
eleven years culminated in being appointed the Executive Divisional Director of the Utilities 
Division and to the PLC Board in 1984. 

He was appointed Chief Executive in 1990, implementing a strategy of development that 
has taken the Group from the position of a Regional to that of a National Contractor. Key to 
that development was his recognition that the primary requirement for the Company was 
diversification into a Group structure and the creation of both a building division and an M&E 
subsidiary.

He is a Chartered Engineer and a Fellow of the Institute of Civil Engineers. 

STRENGTHS
•	 UKGAAP & IFRS compliance 
•	 Strategic Financial planning 
•	 Forecasting and detailed analysis
•	 Risk management, policy and process implementation 

Dan joined NM Group in 2013 having rapidly progressed his career since completing his degree 
and becoming a Chartered Accountant. He brought not only his experience in accounting, tax 
and auditing but an in-depth knowledge of the group from his previous role as an auditor, 
working previously with the PLC. Dan bears full responsibility for monitoring the Group’s 
business performance and cash flow; overseeing budgets and ensuring operational adherence 
across all regions. Additionally Dan is accountable for annual reporting and the Groups’ financial 
models, governance and risk. He was appointed to the North Midland Construction PLC board 
in August 2013 and also sits on the Executive Administration Board (EAB) driving continuous 
improvement throughout the group.

STRENGTHS
•	 Effective financial management & commercial acumen
•	 Client retention
•	 Best business practice
•	 Inspiring innovation &innovative ideas
•	 Strong leadership skills in board governance

Andy joined the Group in 1998 as Managing Director of Nomenca Limited during the formation 
of the subsidiary company, and was appointed to the Board of North Midland Construction PLC 
in 2013. Over the past seventeen years, Andy has steered Nomenca into year on year growth 
within the specialist MEICA field. Cultivating an enviable reputation within the market based 
on repeat business through long term relationships in both contracting, product development 
and maintenance. He also sits on the Executive Administration Board (EAB) driving continuous 
improvement throughout the group.

DAN TAYLOR BSc (Hons), ACA 
FINANCE DIRECTOR & COMPANY SECRETARY

ANDY LANGMAN  
MANAGING DIRECTOR NOMENCA LTD
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STRENGTHS
•	 Client relationship management
•	 Inspiring innovation
•	 Versatile and reactive management style

Stuart is the embodiment of our people development strategy having joined the group in 1977 as a 
civil site engineer. He continued to progress his career through site management; culminating in 
reaching Director Status in 2005 as Executive Director for Operations. 

In 2009 he led the integration of the head office civils and MEICA teams into the NMCNomenca 
delivery division; to service the groups’ long term strategic client Severn Trent Water over the 
AMP5 programme. His stewardship of NMCNomenca has yielded long term profitability and has 
successfully secured further works with the E5 consortium and a contract extension for AMP6. 

Stuart was appointed to the NMC board in October 2013 and is a member of the groups’ 
Executive Administration Board (EAB) with strategic responsibilities for HR and ICT. 

Aged 60, was appointed to the Board in 2011. David is a partner in Weightmans LLP, a national 
law firm, working in their Manchester office in the firm’s construction team. He is dual qualified 
as a solicitor both in England and Wales and also in Scotland. Previously he has been a partner 
in major commercial law firms in Manchester and Scotland. He is an experienced commercial 
litigation lawyer and has specialised in construction and engineering disputes for more than 30 
years. He is a trained mediator and is accredited by CEDR.

Aged 68, was appointed to the Board in March 2006. He possesses an Honours Degree in Civil 
Engineering and is a Chartered Engineer. He has over 37 years’ experience in the water industry 
and previously held the position of Managing Director of an engineering consultancy business 
and was Director of Engineering and Procurement with Severn Trent Water. He has served on 
the Board for nine years.

Aged 67, is a Chartered Accountant and was appointed to the Board in March 2004. He has held 
a number of Non-Executive and Executive Directorships in both the public and private sectors, 
including Center Parcs plc. He is currently a Non-Executive Director of Orbit Housing Group and 
the Peterborough and Stamford NHS Foundation Trust. He is also Chairman of the Midlands 
region of the National Trust and is an advisor to a range of developing organisations. He has 
served on the Board for eleven years. The Nomination Committee has rigorously reviewed his 
position and independence in line with the code.

STUART PROUD  
MANAGING DIRECTOR NMCNOMENCA DIvISION

IAN ELLIOT
INDEPENDENT NON-ExECUTIvE DIRECTOR

STEVE BROWN 
SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-ExECUTIvE DIRECTOR

DAVID ROGERS 
INDEPENDENT NON-ExECUTIvE DIRECTOR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group is committed to high standards of Corporate 
Governance. This statement describes how the relevant 
principles of governance are applied to the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 the Directors confirm that 
the Company has taken appropriate steps to comply with the 
provisions of “The UK Corporate Governance Code” and with the 
provisions of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules on Audit 
Committees and Corporate Governance statements (DTR 7).

THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors, under its Chairman, R. Moyle, consists 
of four Executives, all highly experienced in the construction 
industry, and three independent Non-Executive members. 
Details of their biographies can be found on pages 44 to 45.

The Non-Executive Directors have no financial or contractual 
interest in the Company other than by way of their fees 
and shareholdings and are considered independent of the 
Company. R. Moyle is the Chief Executive, whose role includes 
all the general duties and responsibilities of the daily functions 
of running a Public Company. The Senior Independent 
Director is S.J.T. Brown, who has served for eleven years. The 
Nomination Committee has rigorously reviewed his position 
and independence in line with the code. Mr S.J.T. Brown has 
offered himself up for re-election.

The Board met formally, as a whole, 7 times during the year 
and the Audit Committee met 4 times during the year. The 
remuneration committee also met twice during the year. All 
required Directors were present at each meeting to have 
quorum. The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved 
solely for it to decide which includes responsibility for the 
overall Group strategy.

In advance of all Board Meetings a Board pack is circulated to 
Board members informing them of all relevant matters.

There is a well-established budgeting and reporting function, 
with budgets and results reviewed by the Board providing 
a timely and regular monitoring of financial performance. 
All capital expenditure is approved by the Board only after a 
thorough evaluation process.

The Directors have undertaken a formal and rigorous 
evaluation of their performance for the year ended  
31 December 2014. The results have been reviewed by the 
Board, led by the Chairman and discussed with individual 
Directors, except that the performance of the Chairman was 
reviewed by the Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior 
Independent Director.

The Board has an agreed procedure for Directors to take 
independent professional advice in the furtherance of their 
duties, should they so require.

The appointment of Non-Executive Directors is formalised in 
that a committee comprising the Chairman and Non-Executive 
members nominates candidates for consideration by the 
Board. The appointment of Executive Directors is considered 
by the Board as a whole. Every Director is entitled to receive 
appropriate training as deemed necessary.

All Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election 
at least once every three years. 

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
The Board is fully aware of its duty to present a balanced 
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and 
prospects, and this is included in the Chairman’s Statement 
and Strategic Report.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems 
of internal financial control, and for monitoring their 
effectiveness. The system of internal controls is designed to 
manage rather than eliminate the risk of business failure; to 
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable 
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or 
loss. The Directors have established an organisation structure 
with clear operating procedures, lines of responsibility and 
delegated authority within the limitations of the size of the 
business. These controls are established in order to safeguard 
the Group’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and 
ensure that financial information used within the business or 
published, is reliable.

The risk management processes were in place for the full year 
to 31 December 2014 and up to the date of approval of this 
report. The procedures are constantly reviewed throughout 
the year along with the operational risks across the Group and 
prioritisation of those risks identified for further action. This is 
carried out primarily at a management level and reported up to 
the Board and as summarised on pages 28 to 29.

The Board has not undertaken a formal annual review of the 
effectiveness of the internal controls. The size of the Company 
and the close involvement of the Executive Directors ensures a 
sound system of internal control is maintained.

GOING CONCERN
Based on normal business planning and control procedures 
the Directors confirm that the Company and the Group have 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The 
Board regularly reviews financial statements, cash balances 
and forecasts to ensure that the going concern state of affairs 
continues to prevail.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has constituted an Audit Committee, which 
comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr 
S.J.T. Brown (Chairman), Mr I. Elliott and Mr D.P. Rogers. The 
Board is satisfied that they have recent and relevant financial 
experience to analyse and when necessary to challenge, the 
information contained in or the presentation of, management 
accounts and statutory financial statements. The Chairman 
and the Finance Director attend Committee meetings for 
specific purposes at the agreement of the Committee.

The Committee is responsible for reviewing with the 
nature and scope of the external audit and the results of 
that audit, any internal control issues raised by them and 
management responses. In addition, the Committee reviews 
the independence and objectivity of the external auditor. BDO 
LLP currently carries out routine tax compliance work (see 
note 8 for fees charged). The Committee takes the view that 
carrying out this non-audit work does not affect BDO LLP’s 
objectivity or independence, given the extent of fees charged 
for non-audit services, and it does not fall within the definition 
of ‘accounting services’. The review of interim and annual 
financial statements and the appointment and remuneration of 
the external auditor, are considered by the Board as a whole.

During the year the Committee met on four occasions and all 
members were present. The external auditors were invited and 
attended these meetings.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company is predominantly a family-owned business and 
has only a small number of institutional shareholders. The 
Board endeavours to maintain dialogue with its shareholders 
by means of periodic financial reporting via Interim 
Management Statements, as required by the UK Listing 
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules at the quarter 
end, interim results at the half year, the Annual Report and 
at Annual General Meetings. Details of these together with 
related press releases are available at the Company’s website  
(www.nmgroupplc.co.uk).

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 the Company 
has been compliant with the UK Corporate Governance Code 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council in the UK, with the 
exception of the matters referred to below, which arise solely 
due to the size of the Company and the burden of increased 
costs should the Company wish to comply.

R. Moyle is the Chairman, a role he combines with his 
responsibilities as Chief Executive.

D.A. Taylor is the Company Secretary, a role he combines with 
his responsibilities as Finance Director.

The Board had concluded that, due to the size of the Company, 
the cost of setting up an internal audit department in previous 
years could not be justified. The Audit Committee has reviewed 
the necessity and value of an internal audit function during 
2014 and began to implement a project monitoring programme 
in relation to commercial and contractual risk. The Company is 
utilising internal expertise from across divisions to deliver the 
internal audit function.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We have worked hard this year to put together a report which is 
transparent yet concise and shows not only what we have done 
but how we have done it. 

WHO ARE WE?
The Audit Committee is made up of three independent Non-
Executive directors, Ian Elliott, David Rogers and myself, Steve 
Brown. Our biographies, qualifications and experience are 
included on pages 44 to 45.

OUR PURPOSE
The key purpose of the Audit Committee is to monitor and 
review the formal arrangements established by the Board in 
respect of:

•	 the financial reporting and narrative reporting of the Group

•	 the effectiveness of the internal controls and the risk 
management framework

•	 whistleblowing

•	 internal audit process; and

•	 external audit process

WHAT WE DID – MAjOR RESPONSIBILITIES DURING THE YEAR:
Review of interim and final financial statements, and 
announcements relating to the financial performance of the 
group. 

Examination of the internal control processes within the group 

and, in particular how those have been implemented since the 
integration of a number of divisions and the potential growth 
opportunities the Group has.

Recommending the re-appointment of external auditors, 
agreeing the scope of their work and their remuneration, and 
reviewing their effectiveness and independence. 

Reviewed the terms of reference and instructions given to key 
external experts who’s reports and opinions have been used 
in the preparation of the financial statements. In particular, 
in relation to significant claim recovery relating to legacy 
contracts.

Agreement to begin to undertake an internal audit programme. 
Consideration of its resourcing going forward and agreeing 
a protocol for reviewing the results of its work, deciding on 
any actions that need to be taken and a review of the relevant 
operation or department’s overall effectiveness. 

Advising the Board on whether the financial statements are 
fair, balanced and understandable and if they provide the 
information necessary for the shareholders to assess the 
group performance, business model and strategy. The Audit 
Committee has responsibility for a number of other matters 
and you will find information on these and other documents 
that are pertinent to understanding the Audit Committee’s role 
and remit on our website www.northmid.co.uk. 

HOW WE DID IT 2014
The committee met four times during the last year, and we 
plan to do this again in the coming year to December 2015. 
During the last year following matters were discussed: 

FEBRUARY 2014
Review of Audit Committee terms of reference.

Updated the external Auditors on the financial performance of 
the Group and discussed areas of significant risk.

Reviewed impact of revised annual report and accounts and 
legislative requirements.

Agreed approach to review risk management procedures.

MARCH 2014
Initial review of the draft annual report and accounts. 

Review effectiveness of reporting, our policies, governance 
code and the requirements of ISA 700 in the annual report and 
accounts.

Review of preliminary announcement for 2013 results.

AUGUST 2014
Agreed revised risk management and governance procedures 
and implementation of project monitoring plan.

Discussed auditor effectiveness and reported back to BDO LLP 
based on compiled questionnaire.

STEVE BROWN 
SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-ExECUTIvE DIRECTOR
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Updated the external Auditors on legacy contracts and current 
trading.

DECEMBER 2014
Pre year-end review of results.

Updated the external Auditors on strategy and progress against 
targets.

Identification of potential risks and uncertainties within the 
group that may impact the financial statements.

Agreed reporting, accounting and auditing issues with the 
committee and the external auditor.

Reviewed first project monitoring reports and discussed areas 
for improvement.

As well as attending the Audit Committee meetings, the 
members continued to perform their duties throughout the 
year, through:

•	 Regulatory updates.

•	 Discussion of significant risks and uncertainties as they 
arise.

•	 Review of interim Financial Statements, and 
Announcements relating to the financial performance of the 
Group.

EXTERNAL AUDIT 
The committee met with the external auditors, BDO LLP, 
formally during the year end process to discuss the nature and 
scope of the audit, to review (in some detail) the audit plan and 
lastly to review the outcome of the audit and to discuss issues 
arising and their resolution. 

When meeting with the auditors we reviewed the Group’s 
accounting policies to ensure that they remained appropriate 
and discussed in broad terms the major risks that the auditors 
were likely to consider during their work. These are set out 
in the auditors’ own report, but included profits recognised 
on contracts, valuation of trade receivables, going concern, 
and the risk of management override of controls. We also 
discussed the auditors independence regarding fees, which are 
set out in note 8.

We also discussed the judgements and uncertainties inherent 
in the preparation of the financial statements with the auditors 
and how these areas should be dealt with by the group. 

tHeSe matteRS aRe aS fOLLOwS: 

RECOGNITION OF REVENUE AND ATTRIBUTABLE PROFIT (OR LOSSES) ON 
CONTRACTS
The auditors anticipated this to be an area of significant 
risk because accounting for contracts form the basis of the 
reported performance of the group. The extent of revenue 
and profit / loss recognised on a partially completed contract 

represents an area of judgement. The Board, where necessary, 
has taken expert advice on the value of certain problematic 
contracts recognised in the financial statements. These 
experts have been used to give opinion on the legal substance 
and quantum measurement where appropriate. A further 
independent expert has been engaged to review the major 
problematic contract at the end of 2014 due to the continuing 
losses being suffered which were unforeseen at the previous 
year end. The Audit Committee reviewed and agreed with the 
use of such experts and the process the Board has undertaken 
to ensure that these contracts were reflected accurately in the 
financial statements. 

GOING CONCERN
In the context of the global economic downturn experienced 
over the last 5 years, specifically impacting on the construction 
sector, the Board’s going concern assessment will be 
significant to the financial statements.

 
AUDIT MATTERS
The Committee agreed the audit plan with the auditors, having 
paid particular regard to issues of scope and materiality. The 
Committee also agreed the external auditors remuneration.

We have discussed the presentation of the annual report, both 
in the context of the increasing acceptance of the concept 
of integrated reporting and also in view of the difficulties 
shareholders commented on in relation to the ever increasing 
complexity of the financial statements. 

The committee also discuss expected losses due to the 
significant building contracts, the contractual problems 
surrounding the buildings and civil engineering division, 
and any unfavourable commercial settlements due to client 
financial instability.

At our final meeting with the auditors, prior to signing the 
annual report, we discussed the resolution of the risks that the 
auditors had identified above. The Audit Committee recognised 
and agreed with the Board’s use of external experts. The 
committee confirmed the expert’s ability and objectivity where 
significant judgements were required, and if this had been 
impaired in light of existing services provided to the Group. The 
Audit Committee noted and considered all items raised by the 
auditors and asked the executives to respond with an ongoing 
action plan where appropriate.

OTHER FEES PAID TO OUR EXTERNAL AUDITOR
In terms of non-audit services, these have been limited to tax 
compliance related to the audit and amounted to £3,000 (2013: 
£3,000). All such activities have to be agreed by this committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
CONTINUED

EFFECTIVENESS OF OUR AUDITOR
We are currently reviewing the effectiveness of the external 
auditor. In doing so we plan to speak to the Finance Director, 
the Chief Executive, and a selection of the Group’s senior 
financial management within each business unit. We will ask 
them to complete a questionnaire, as we did last year, which 
will provide an objective scoring system around aspects of 
technical quality and of service quality. However, at this stage 
we remain satisfied that our auditors are delivering an effective 
service on behalf of shareholders in terms of the necessary 
scrupulousness and challenge in their work, and also in terms 
of supporting the annual report process effectively. We shall 
continue to review this on an annual basis. BDO have been 
our auditors since 2010, there are no contractual obligations 
surrounding their appointment. Our last tender was in 2010, at 
which time our current auditor was first appointed. Due to the 
rules surrounding listed audits, BDO LLP will be required to 
rotate the audit partner assigned to the Group for the year to  
31 December 2015. We are satisfied that the rotation will not 
impact the audit quality.

INTERNAL AUDIT
We agreed to review the necessity and value of an internal 
audit function during 2014, in particular around commercial 
and contractual risk. The Audit Committee feel that the 
Group would benefit from extending the work done by the 
Quality, Environmental, Safety and Health (QESH) team to 
financial matters, as well as undertaking commercial peer 
reviews of certain contracts. The Audit Committee has began 
to implement a project monitoring programme in relation to 
commercial and contractual risk. The Company is utilising 
internal expertise from cross divisions to deliver the internal 
audit function. The first round of reports were reviewed by the 
Committee during the year.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements, and the annual report as a whole, 
are the responsibility of the entire Board. Their responsibility 
statement is contained in the Report of the Directors on page 
65, but the Board look to the Audit Committee to advise them 
in relation to the financial statements both as regards their 
form and content, issues which might arise and on specific 
areas which require judgement, such as the going concern 
presumption. The Board believes the annual report, taken as a 
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable. 

In order to be able to advise the Board that the annual report 
is fair, balanced and understandable we spent some time 
deciding what we felt this meant and who our key stakeholders 
were and what this would mean for them. We decided that the 

annual report should be free from bias, tell the story of the 
company for this financial year accurately and make sense to 
the reader. 

 
GOING CONCERN 

The committee reviewed the going concern position. Particular 
attention was given to both the liquidity and solvency position 
envisaged by the report for the period 12 months from this 
date. 

FUTURE PLANS 
We will of course continue to perform out duties as set out 
in our terms of reference over the course of the next year. 
However there are a number of matters which we will be 
concentrating on as the year progresses, including: 

•	 A review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function; 
and 

•	 A review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

S.j.T BROWN 
Audit Committee Non-Executive Chairman 
17 April 2015
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REMUNERATION REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to present the directors’ remuneration report for 2014. This report has been prepared following a year in which the 
Company’s underlying performance continues to improve but is affected by the legacy contracts taken on during the height of the 
recession. This report aims to show how the committee is balancing the past underperformance of the Group, due to the legacy 
contracts, against the underlying performance and positive opportunities the Group has going forward.

The remuneration framework at the Company currently comprises base salary, pension, benefits and a cash bonus plan linked 
to profitability. This policy is designed to provide a clear link between executive remuneration and the Group’s performance and 
the delivery of its strategy, while balancing the interests of shareholders, management and other stakeholders. Our aim is to 
provide overall remuneration packages to executive directors that are sufficiently competitive to attract, motivate and retain the 
highest quality individuals, in order that we can employ executive directors who are capable of achieving the Group’s aims and, in 
particular, generating sustainable long-term returns for our shareholders.

So as to ensure that our policy continues to achieve these objectives, we regularly review our approach in light of the Company’s 
evolving strategy and emerging trends in market and best practice. Indeed, we have recently commenced a review of executive 
remuneration (with the assistance of independent specialist advisers), which has focussed specifically on ensuring that the 
interests of our management team are directly aligned to the long-term interests of our shareholders. The first findings of this 
review have led us to make some initial changes to our policy and practices as they relate to base salaries and annual bonus. 
More particularly:

•	 Base salaries – following a benchmark review of the executive directors’ current remuneration packages (undertaken by our 
independent advisers), the Committee has agreed to increase the base salaries of the executive directors by circa 8% for 2015 
which, for Messrs Taylor, Langman and Proud bring their base salaries closer to (but still below) the market rate for their roles 
and, for Robert Moyle, results in his base salary now more fairly representing his wide-ranging responsibilities, expertise and 
experience (all of which are crucial to the Company’s future success)

•	 Annual bonuses – a number of changes are proposed to the executive directors’ annual bonus opportunity for 2015 and beyond 
to ensure that this plan is more reflective of best practice and the Company’s culture and strategic goals. For example, a 
cap will be introduced above which no bonus can normally be paid (the previous bonus opportunity was uncapped which is 
contrary to best practice). Furthermore (i) the Committee will have the ability to reduce the provisional bonus payout based 
on performance against the Profit Before Tax (“PBT”) targets if it considers that circumstances make such a reduction 
appropriate and (ii) clawback and malus provisions will be introduced which will allow the Committee to demand repayment 
of bonuses previously earned in certain circumstances. Both these new provisions reflect emerging best practice and protect 
against inappropriate bonus payouts.

The Committee intends to complete its review of executive director remuneration during the course of 2015 and, should the 
output of this review be that further changes should be made to the existing policy (perhaps including further revisions to the 
existing annual bonus plan and/or the establishment of a formal long-term incentive plan) we will then seek formal shareholder 
approval at the 2016 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) to implement these changes (having consulted with our major shareholders 
in advance).
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In addition to commencing this review of remuneration, the Committee undertook the following key other activities during the 
year:

•	 Determining the individual remuneration packages for executive directors for 2014

•	 Determining the bonus outturn for 2013

•	 Agreeing the bonus structure for 2014

Following the year end, we have also agreed the bonus outturn for each executive director for 2014. No bonuses will be payable 
to Robert Moyle and Dan Taylor as the threshold level of Group PBT required to trigger a bonus payout was not achieved. Messrs 
Langman and Proud earned bonuses of £33,000 and £46,000 respectively which reflected the performance of the divisions for 
which they have specific responsibility. 

The regulations governing the directors’ remuneration reports of listed companies require that we split our report into two 
sections: a Policy Report which sets out the Company’s forward-looking Directors’ Remuneration Policy and a separate 
Implementation Report which gives details of the payments made to Directors in 2014, as well as other required disclosures.

At our 2015 AGM, we will be holding two votes on remuneration matters: 

•	 a vote on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set out in Part A of this Report, which reflects the fact that (i) we have made 
some minor changes to the policy for which shareholder approval was sought at the last AGM and (ii) to take account of the 
new manner in which we have presented our policy in this report (which more closely reflects practice adopted by other listed 
companies), and

•	 a vote on the remaining implementation sections of this Report (set out as Part B); 

I hope that you will continue to be supportive of our executive remuneration policy as it continues to evolve, and that you will vote 
in favour of our remuneration-related resolutions at the 2015 AGM. As mentioned above, the changes we are introducing this year 
are initial, but nonetheless important, steps, in ensuring that our policies and practices take due account of market/best practice 
and ensure that we can provide packages that attract and retain the executive talent that the Company requires to generate 
sustainable long-term returns to its shareholders.

Yours sincerely

S.j.T BROWN 
Chairman, Remuneration Committee 
17 April 2015

REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED
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INTRODUCTION
This report contains the material required to be set out as the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The 
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, which amended The 
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (“the DRR regulations”). 

Part A represents the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. This policy will take effect, subject to the approval of the shareholders, 
immediately after the 2015 AGM.

Part B constitutes the implementation sections of the Remuneration Report (“Implementation Report”). The auditors have 
reported on certain parts of the Implementation Report and stated whether, in their opinion, those parts have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those parts of the Implementation Report which have been subject to audit 
are clearly indicated.

PART A: DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set out in this section of the Remuneration Report will take effect for all payments made 
to Directors from the date of the AGM, which is expected to be held on 21 May 2015. The policy has been developed mindful of the 
new Corporate Governance Code and is felt to be appropriate to support the long-term success of the Company while ensuring 
that it does not promote inappropriate risk-taking.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ELEMENT AND PURPOSE POLICY AND OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

BaSe SaLaRy 
This is the core 
element of pay 
and reflects the 
individual’s role 
and position within 
the Group with 
some adjustment 
to reflect their 
capability and 
contribution.

Base salaries will be reviewed 
each year by the Committee. 

The Committee does not strictly 
follow benchmark pay data but 
uses the median position as a 
reference point in considering, 
in its judgment, the appropriate 
level of salary having regard to 
other relevant factors including 
corporate and individual 
performance and any changes 
in an individual’s role and 
responsibilities. Base salary is 
paid monthly in cash.

The Executive Directors’ salaries 
will not be increased so as to exceed 
the median for the equivalent roles 
in companies listed in the FTSE 
SmallCap Index. Normally, executive 
directors’ base salaries will not 
be increased by more than the 
average awarded to staff. However, 
during the life of this policy it 
may be necessary to make higher 
increases to bring the executive 
directors’ salaries closer to an 
appropriate market rate (and/or to 
reflect an increase in scope of role/
responsibilities). 

N/A

BenefItS 
To provide 
benefits valued by 
recipients.

The Executive Directors receive 
private health care cover, a 
company car or car allowance 
and a company fuel card.

The Committee reserves 
discretion to introduce new 
benefits where it concludes 
that it is appropriate to do so, 
having regard to the particular 
circumstances and to market 
practice. 

Where appropriate, the Company 
will meet certain costs relating 
to Executive Director relocations.

It is not possible to prescribe the 
likely change in the cost of insured 
benefits or the cost of some of the 
other reported benefits year-to-year, 
but the provision of benefits will 
operate within an annual limit of 
£50,000 (plus a further 100% of base 
salary in the case of relocations). 

The Committee will monitor the 
costs of benefits in practice and 
will ensure that the overall costs 
do not increase by more than the 
Committee considers appropriate in 
all the circumstances.

N/A
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ELEMENT AND PURPOSE POLICY AND OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

penSIOn 
To provide 
retirement 
benefits.

Executive Directors can receive 
pension contributions to 
personal pension arrangements 
or, if a Director is impacted 
by annual or lifetime limits on 
contribution levels to qualifying 
pension plans, the balance can 
be paid as a cash supplement.

The maximum employer’s 
contribution is limited to up to 25% 
of base salary, although it is not 
currently anticipated that pension 
provision for the Executive Directors 
will be at this level.

N/A

annUaL BOnUS
Plan To motivate 
executives and 
incentivise delivery 
of performance 
over a one-year 
operating cycle, 
focusing on the 
short- to medium-
term elements of 
our strategic aims.

Annual Bonus Plan levels and 
the appropriateness of measures 
are reviewed annually at the 
commencement of each financial 
year to ensure they continue to 
support our strategy. 

Once set, performance 
measures and targets will 
generally remain unchanged for 
the year, except to reflect events 
such as corporate acquisitions or 
other major transactions where 
the Committee considers it to be 
necessary in its opinion to make 
appropriate adjustments. 

Annual Bonus Plan outcomes 
are paid in cash following the 
determination of achievement 
against performance measures 
and targets, albeit that a portion 
of the bonus can be deferred and 
payable a year later. 

Clawback and malus provisions 
apply to the Annual Bonus Plan 
as explained in more detail in the 
relevant note to the policy table 
(which does not form part of the 
policy itself).

The maximum annual bonus that 
can be earned is 45% of base salary 
for the duration of this policy.

The performance measures 
applied may be financial or 
non-financial and corporate, 
divisional or individual and 
in such proportions as 
the Committee considers 
appropriate. 

Details of the proposed 
performance measures for 2015 
are set out in the notes to this 
table. 

The Committee’s current 
intention is that, for a threshold 
level of performance, a bonus of 
up to 30% of salary can be paid. 
The Annual Bonus Plan remains 
a discretionary arrangement 
and the Committee retains a 
standard power to apply its 
judgment to adjust the outcome 
of the Annual Bonus Plan for 
any performance measure 
(from zero to any cap) should it 
consider that to be appropriate.

LOng-teRm IncentIveS No formal plan is in operation, 
although this is being reviewed 
by the Committee

N/A N/A
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ELEMENT AND PURPOSE POLICY AND OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

aLL-empLOyee SHaRe 
pLanS 
To encourage 
share ownership 
by employees, 
thereby allowing 
them to share in 
the long-term 
success of the 
Group and align 
their interests 
with those of the 
shareholders.

The Company operates an 
HMRC-approved Share Incentive 
Plan which follows the usual 
form for such plans. 

Executive Directors are able to 
participate in the plan on the 
same terms as other Group 
employees.

The maximum participation levels 
for the plan is set by HMRC from 
time to time.

Consistent with normal practice, 
such awards are not subject to 
performance conditions.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

ELEMENT AND PURPOSE POLICY AND OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES

nOn-execUtIve 
dIRectOR feeS 
To enable the 
Company to 
recruit and retain 
Non-Executive 
Directors of the 
highest calibre, 
at the appropriate 
cost

The fees paid to Non-executive 
Directors aim to be competitive 
with other fully listed companies 
of equivalent size and complexity. 

The fees payable to the 
Non-executive Directors are 
determined by the Board. 

Non-executive Directors will 
not participate in any incentive 
arrangements. 

No benefits are envisaged 
for the Non-executive 
Directors(including the 
Chairman) but the Company 
reserves the right to provide 
benefits (including travel and 
office support) within the 
prescribed limits.

Fees are paid monthly in cash. 

The aggregate fees (and any 
benefits) of the Non-executive 
Directors will not exceed £250,000 in 
aggregate. 

Any increases actually made will be 
appropriately disclosed.

N/A

NOTES TO THE POLICY TABLE
1. Annual Bonus Plan performance measures to apply in the Financial Year to 31 December 2015 (for information and not part of 

the Directors’ Remuneration Policy)

The bonus payable to the Executive Directors for 2015 will be based on net PBT targets. For the achievement of a threshold level 
of PBT, a bonus of 30% of salary will be payable. For achieving a stretch level of PBT, a bonus of 45% of salary will be payable 
which is the maximum bonus payable for 2015. For Messrs Moyle and Taylor, their bonus is payable entirely by reference to 
Group PBT. As Messrs Langman and Proud are Managing Directors of specific business segments, a portion of their bonuses are 
payable on segment profits as well as Group PBT. 

In addition, the Committee may reduce the provisional bonus payout (down to zero if thought appropriate) if the Committee 
believes that exceptional circumstances make it appropriate to do so. These exceptional circumstances could include (but are not 
limited to) (i) material reputational damage to the Company caused by mis-management (ii) material regulatory censure, (iii) a 
material breach of the Company’s Health, Safety and Environmental policies.
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25% of any bonus earned will be deferred for a year and will be paid at the end of this deferred period subject to (i) the executive 
director’s continued employment and (ii) the malus provision explained below.

Given the competitive nature of the Company’s sector, the specific PBT targets for the Annual Bonus Plan are considered to 
be commercially sensitive and accordingly will not be disclosed until such time as the Committee believes them no longer 
commercially sensitive. 

For the purposes of assessing performance against the PBT targets, the Committee may exclude the impact of any material one-
off, /non-recurring, /”exceptional” items which may be potentially PBT-enhancing and will determine, acting fairly and reasonably, 
how to treat any such items that may negatively impact PBT.

2. Malus and Clawback 2015 (for information and not part of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy)

Malus (being the forfeiture of any deferred element of bonus) and clawback (being the ability of the Company to claim repayment 
(as a debt) of any net bonus previously paid) provisions can be applied by the Committee. If the Committee becomes aware that 
the financial (or other) results that they used to determine a bonus payout were incorrect which resulted in an overpayment of 
bonus and/or if the Committee becomes aware of an act or omission by an executive director that justifies (or would at the time 
have justified) summary dismissal, the Committee can apply malus and/or clawback on any bonus declared up to three years 
prior to the relevant event coming to light.

3. Stating maximum amounts for the remuneration policy

The DRR Regulations and related investor guidance encourages companies to disclose a cap within which each element of the 
Directors’ Remuneration Policy will operate. Where maximum amounts for elements of remuneration have been set within the 
above, these will operate simply as caps and are not indicative of any aspiration.

4. Travel and hospitality

While the Committee does not consider travel and hospitality to form part of benefits in the normal usage of that term, it has 
been advised that corporate hospitality (whether paid for by the Company or another party) and business travel for Directors (and 
exceptionally their families) may technically come within the applicable rules and so the Committee expressly reserves the right 
for the Committee to authorise such activities within its agreed policies.

5. Differences between the policy on remuneration for Directors from the policy on remuneration of other employees  

While the appropriate benchmarks vary by role, the Company seeks to apply the philosophy behind this policy across the 
Company as a whole. Where the Company’s pay policy for Directors differs from its pay policies for groups of employees, this 
reflects the appropriate market rate for the relevant roles. The Company takes into account pay levels and bonus opportunity 
applied across the Group as a whole when setting the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

6. Outstanding obligations

The Company will honour any commitments entered into prior to the approval and introduction of this policy.

7. Pension Contributions

 An Executive Director may elect to surrender salary or annual bonus outcomes in return for additional contributions to pension 
arrangements being made by the Company on his behalf. Any such amounts surrendered are regarded as part of the original pay 
element for the purposes of this policy rather than as amounts counting towards the maximum employer’s pension contribution 
stated in the table above. If the Company elects to increase the additional pension contribution to reflect any related employer’s 
NICs saving, any such increases to reflect employer’s NICs will be regarded as additional employer’s pension contributions for 
the purposes of this policy.

RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION POLICY
The Company’s recruitment remuneration policy aims to give the Committee sufficient flexibility to secure the appointment and 
promotion of high-calibre executives to strengthen the management team and secure the skill sets to deliver our strategic aims. 
The main features of this policy are described in the table below.:

In terms of the principles for setting a package for a new Executive Director, the starting point for the Committee will be to apply 
the general policy for Executive Directors as set out above and structure a package in accordance with that policy. Consistent 
with the DRR Regulations, the caps contained within the policy for fixed pay do not apply to new recruits, although the Committee 
would not envisage exceeding these caps in practice.

The Annual Bonus Plan will operate (including the maximum award levels) as detailed in the general policy in relation to any 
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newly appointed Executive Director. For an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role 
may either continue on its original terms or be adjusted to reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

For external and internal appointments, the Committee may agree that the Company will meet certain relocation expenses as it 
considers appropriate. For external candidates, it may be necessary to make additional awards in connection with the recruitment 
to buy-out awards forfeited by the individual on leaving a previous employer. 

For the avoidance of doubt, buy-out awards are not subject to a formal cap. Any recruitment-related awards which are not buy-
outs will be subject to the limits for Annual Bonus Plan as stated in the general policy. Details of any recruitment-related awards 
will be appropriately disclosed.

For any buy-outs the Company will not pay more than is, in the view of the Committee, necessary and will in all cases seek, in 
the first instance, to deliver any such awards under the terms of the existing Annual Bonus Plan. It may, however, be necessary in 
some cases to make buy-out awards on terms that are more bespoke than the existing Annual Bonus Plan (e.g. structure awards 
that may pay out over multi-year periods). 

All buy-outs, whether under the Annual Bonus Plan or otherwise, will take account of the service obligations and performance 
requirements for any remuneration relinquished by the individual when leaving a previous employer. The Committee will seek to 
make buy-outs subject to what are, in its opinion, comparable requirements in respect of service and performance. However, the 
Committee may choose to relax this requirement in certain cases (such as where the service and/or performance requirements are 
materially completed, or where such factors are, in the view of the Committee, reflected in some other way, such as a significant 
discount to the face value of the awards forfeited) and where the Committee considers it to be in the interests of shareholders.

A new Non-Executive Director would be recruited on the same terms as explained above in respect of the main policy for such 
Directors.

SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Executive Directors has a service contract which exceeds one year. The current notice periods are six months for all 
executives. Copies of these contracts are kept at the Company’s registered office.

The Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment. They are engaged for specific terms and their reappointment will not 
be automatic.

There are no specific provisions in the contracts relating to termination payments.

The date of each Executive Director’s contract is: 

Name Date of Latest Contract
R Moyle March 2015

D A Taylor February 2013

A Langman October 1988

D S Proud March 2015

TERMINATION POLICY SUMMARY
The Committee will consider treatments on a termination having regard to all of the relevant facts and circumstances available 
at that time, the provisions of service contracts and the terms of any incentive arrangement. This policy applies both to any 
negotiations linked to notice periods on a termination and any treatments that the Committee may choose to apply under the 
discretions available to it under the terms of the Annual Bonus Plan (or other incentive arrangement). 

The Company has the power to enter into settlement agreements with Directors and to pay compensation to settle potential legal 
claims. In addition, and consistent with market practice, in the event of the termination of an Executive Director, the Company 
may a contribution towards that individual’s legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement. 
Any such fees will be disclosed as part of the detail of termination arrangements. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not 
include an explicit cap on the cost of termination payments.

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS
The Company’s policy is to permit an Executive Director to serve as a non-executive director elsewhere when this does not 
conflict with the individual’s duties to the Company. Where an Executive Director takes such a role, whether they are entitled to 
retain any fees which they earn from that appointment will be considered on a case by case basis. No executive director currently 
holds any external appointment.
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STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE GROUP
Pay and employment conditions generally in the Group are taken into account when setting Executive Directors’ remuneration. 
The Committee receives regular updates on overall pay and conditions in the Group, including (but not limited to) changes in base 
pay and any staff bonus pools in operation. There is also oversight of the all-employee share schemes which Executive Directors 
and all other Group employees can participate in on the same terms and conditions.

Reflecting standard practice, the Company did not consult with employees in drawing up this Remuneration Report.

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS
The Committee ensures that its major shareholder are consulted in advance of any material changes in executive pay practices at 
the Company. The Committee also considers any feedback which it receives from its shareholders in relation to remuneration.

ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY 
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The charts above aim to show how the remuneration policy set out above for Executive Directors is applied using the following 
assumptions:

MINIMUM

•	 Consists of base salary, benefits and pension.

•	 Base salary is the salary to be paid in 2015.

•	 Benefits measured as benefits paid in the year ending 31 December 2014 as set out in the single figure table.

•	 Pension measured as the defined contribution or cash allowance in lieu of Company contributions 

£’000 Base Salary Benefits Pension Total Fixed

Robert Moyle £308,000 £28,500 £58,200 £394,700

Daniel Taylor £138,000 £7,000 £20,700 £165,700

Andrew Langman £138,000 £4,000 £20,700 £162,700

Stuart Proud £138,000 £4,000 £20,700 £162,700

TARGET
Based on what the director would receive if performance was “on-target”. Therefore, includes fixed pay as above 
plus a target bonus payout of 30% of salary

MAXIMUM
Based on what the director would receive if performance was at “maximum”. Therefore, includes fixed pay as 
above plus a maximum bonus payout of 45% of salary

REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED
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PART B: IMPLEMENTATION REPORT FOR 2014
aUdIted InfORmatIOn
SINGLE ToTAL fIGUrE TAbLE (AUdITEd)
The remuneration for the Executive and Non-Executive directors of the Company who performed qualifying services during the 
year is detailed below. The Nnon-Executive directors received no remuneration other than their annual fee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014:

Fees
£’000

Basic 
Salaries

£’000

Benefits
in kind

£’000

Annual 
Bonus
£’000

Pension 
scheme 

contributions
£’000

Total
2014

£’000
Executive Directors       

R. Moyle (Chairman) (Highest Paid) –  285  27  –  56  368 

D. A. Taylor –  128  7  –  19  154 

M. W. Blakeway (resigned 22 May 2014) –  53  3 –  11  67 

A. Langman –  128  4  33  19  184 

S. Proud –  128  4  46  20*  198 

Non-Executive Directors       – 

S. J. T. Brown  32 – – – –  32 

I. Elliott  32 – – – –  32 

D.P. Rogers  32 – – – –  32 

 Total  96  722  45  79  125  1,067

* Additional £1,000 pension payment due in lieu of bonus payable as pension contribution.

For the year ended 31 December 2013:

Fees
£’000

Basic 
Salaries

£’000

Benefits
in kind

£’000

Annual 
Bonus
£’000

Pension 
scheme 

contributions
£’000

Paid to 
management 

company
£’000

Total
2013

£’000
Executive Directors        

R. Moyle (Chairman) 
(Highest Paid)  –  271  27  –  50  –  348 

M. S. Garratt  –  133  8  –  33  –  174 

D. A. Taylor  –  36  3  –  5  –  44 

M. W. Blakeway  –  125  9  –  19  –  153 

D. Bleakley  –  –  –  –  –  22  22 

A. Langman  –  97  2  38  14  –  151 

S. Proud  –  25  1  54  –  –  80 

Non-Executive 
Directors        

S. J. T. Brown  19  –  –  –  –  –  19 

I. Elliott  19  –  –  –  –  –  19 

D.P. Rogers  19  –  –  –  –  –  19 

 Total  57  687  50  92  121  22  1,029 

The aggregate emoluments (being salary/ fees, bonuses, benefits and pension allowances) of all directors for 2014 was 
£1,067,000 (2013: £1,029,000).
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TAXABLE BENEFITS (AUDITED)
The taxable benefits relate to car allowance (paid gross, but net of business mileage) or company cars, fuel cards, and private 
health care.

BONUS SCHEME (AUDITED)
The figures for 2013 and 2014 above include any amounts deferred for a year. The bonus payable to the Executive Directors for 
2014 was based on a percentage of the net profit before tax on profits exceeding £2,000,000 per annum. 25% of the bonus was 
dependent on achieving budgeted results in the following year. As Messrs Langman and Proud were Managing Directors of 
specific business segments, a portion of their bonuses was also achievable on segment profits. No further disclosure of the 
structure of the bonus will be made due to reasons of commercial sensitivity. 

As mentioned above, no bonuses are payable to Robert Moyle and Dan Taylor for 2014 as the threshold level of Group PBT 
required to trigger a bonus payout was not achieved. Messrs Langman and Proud earned bonuses of £33,000 and £46,000 
respectively which reflected the performance of the divisions over which they have specific responsibility. As per the current 
policy, 25% of Messrs Langman and Proud’s bonus is deferred for one year.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The beneficial interests of the Directors in shares of Companies within the Group at both the beginning and the end of the year 
are as follows:

North Midland Construction PLC

31/12/14 
10p 

ordinary 
shares

31/12/13 
10p 

ordinary 
shares

R. Moyle 448,008 448,008

D.A.Taylor 160 —

A.D. Langman 183,994 187,051 

D.S. Proud 47,955 46,836

S.J.T. Brown 6,500 6,500

I. Elliott — —

D.P. Rogers — —

As at 17 April 2015 the interest of D.S. Proud was increased by 320 shares, D.A. Taylor 481 and A.D. Langman 480. This was as a 
result of their participation in the Employee Share Plan. 

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS (AUDITED)
There were no payments to past directors during the year (2013: None)

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED)
There were no payments for loss of office during the year (2013: None)

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND CEO REMUNERATION TABLE (UNAUDITED)
The graphs below shows the Company’s Total Shareholder Return performance compared with the FTSE All Share Index. The 
graphs provide a basis for comparison with a relevant equity index, and the Committee believes that no other published index 
provides a better comparison. In accordance with the Regulations, the graph shows this performance over a six year period. 

REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED
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The regulations also require a table setting out the remuneration of the CEO over a six year period which is presented below. 
The Regulations require the table to express the payout under the bonus as a percentage of the maximum bonus opportunity. 
However, as the Company’s bonus plan did not operate with a maximum bonus opportunity, we have instead shown the bonus 
actually paid in the relevant years:

CEO Single figure of total remuneration (£’000) Bonus Paid to CEO
2014 363,500

2013 348,500

2012 347,000

2011 319,000

2010 408,000 56,000

2009 333,000

CHANGE IN CEO PAY FOR THE YEAR COMPARED TO Uk SALARIED EMPLOYEES
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive and the average change in the Company’s salaried 
population between 2013 and 2014:

% Salary Benefits Bonus
Chief Executive 6% 0% 0%

Average of salaried employees 8% 2% –18%

RELATIVE SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows both the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with the dividends distributed [and share 
buybacks]. 

Year ended 
31 December 

2014 
£000

Year ended 
31 December 

2013 
£000 Change

Aggregate employee remuneration 48,919 42,884 14%

Equity dividends 0 102 –100%
    

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT AGM
The Company remains committed to on-going shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there 
are substantial votes against resolutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Company will seek to understand 
the reasons for any such vote, and will detail here any actions in response to it. Details of the voting on the remuneration-related 
resolutions tabled at the 2014 AGM are set out below.

Number of Votes Votes in favour Votes against Votes withheld
Remuneration Report  
(including policy) 4,890,078 NIL NIL
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The members of the Remuneration Committee (all of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors) are:

•	 Steve Brown (Chairman);

•	 Ian Elliot; and

•	 David Rogers.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are:

•	 recommending to the Board the remuneration strategy and framework for the Executive Directors and senior managers;

•	 determining, within that framework, the individual remuneration arrangements for the Executive Directors and senior 
managers; and

•	 overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group.

The Committee met twice during the year, and twice after the year end.

Robert Moyle is invited to attend meetings of the Committee, except when his own remuneration is being discussed, and the Chief 
Financial officer and other executives attend meetings as required.

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can be viewed on the Company’s website.

IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY IN 2015 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BaSe SaLaRy
•	 Base salaries for the executive directors for 2015 will be as follows:  

Robert Moyle - £308,000 
Messrs Taylor, Langman and Proud - £138,000

penSIOn
•	 Contributions rates for Executive Directors for 2015 will be as follows:  

Robert Moyle – £58,200 
Messrs Taylor, Langman and Proud – 15% of salary

BenefItS
•	 Details of the benefits received by Executive Directors are set out on page 53. 

•	 There is no intention to introduce additional benefits in 2015.

annUaL BOnUS pLan
•	 The Annual Bonus Plan maximum is 45% of base salary

•	 Performance measures for the 2015 Annual Bonus Plan are summarised in note 1 in Notes to the Policy Table.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The non-executive directors fees for 2015 will be £34,000, which have been increased by £2,000 to bring them closer to the market 
level and also to reflect the broad range of responsibilities undertaken.

ADVISERS
FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP, signatories to the Remuneration Consultants Group’s Code of Conduct, have been appointed 
by the Committee. FIT provides advice to the Committee on all matters relating to remuneration, including best practice. FIT 
provided no other services to the Group and, accordingly, the Committee is satisfied that the advice provided by FIT is objective 
and independent. FIT did not raise any invoices for fees in the relevant year. FIT’s fees will be charged on the basis of the firm’s 
standard terms of business for advice provided.

This report was reviewed and approved by the Board on 17 April 2015 and signed on its behalf by order of the Board

S.j.T BROWN 
Remuneration Committee Non-Executive Chairman  
17 April 2015.

REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year as follows:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Operating loss (2,846) (5,855)

Net finance costs (124) (117)

Loss before tax (2,970) (5,972)

Tax (21) 71

Loss (2,991) (5,901)

DIVIDENDS
Details of dividends paid during the year of £NIL are set out in Note 11. Due to the losses reported in the year, the Directors do 
not recommend payment of a final dividend (2013: NIL pence per ordinary share).

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company are as shown on pages 44 and 45.

In accordance with the Articles of Association I Elliott, D.P. Rogers, and S.J.T. Brown retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election.

SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDINGS
The following hold a significant shareholding in the Company:

10p 
ordinary 

shares
Mr P.R. Wood and Mr W.E.C. Cursham (see note 30) 857,574

Mrs D. Hutchinson, Mr I.B. Speke and Mr M.S. Garratt (see note 30) 3,202,616

Mr R. Moyle, Mrs A.E.F. Moyle and Mr R.L. Symington (see note 30) 688,660

Capita IRG Trustees Ltd 512,356

T W G Charlton 304,500

Apart from these and the Directors’ holdings already shown, the Directors are not aware of any other holding which exceeds 3% 
of the issued share capital.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Group made charitable donations totalling £47,325 during the year (2013: £24,930). These donations were made to  
55 beneficiaries.

EMPLOYEES
Applications for employment by disabled persons are fully and fairly considered, bearing in mind the abilities of the persons 
concerned in relation to the position offered. The Group offer the same training and career development opportunities to all staff.

In the event of employees becoming disabled, every reasonable effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group 
continues.

Group management is responsible for employee participation practices. These practices include the communication of relevant 
information on work related issues to all employees via a monthly newsletter.

The Group holds a quarterly consultation meeting with employee representatives.

The Group has no women (2013: none) on the Board of Directors and 3 (2013: 3) women included within key management (note 29).

The Group is committed to equality and diversity and does not discriminate in employee selection.
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MARkET VALUE OF SHARES AT 31 MARCH 1982
For Capital Gains Tax purposes, the market value of the Ordinary Shares of 10p in the Company as at 31 March 1982 was 6.563 
pence per share.

AUDITOR AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information. The Directors confirm that there is no 
relevant information that they know of which the auditor is unaware of.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are set out in Note 18.

The Directors believe that it would be advantageous to the Company to have more flexibility as regards the shares in the 
Company. The Directors have, therefore, decided to request shareholders to confer the authorities as detailed below. The 
Directors will be voting in favour of the proposed resolutions in respect of their own shareholdings in the Company, and they 
recommend that you vote in favour of the Resolutions.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION
Details of our emission during the year are set out on pages 32 and 33 and form part of the Director’s Report Disclosures.

AUTHORITY TO ALLOT EqUITY SECURITIES (RESOLUTION 6)
Generally, the Directors may only allot shares in the Company (or grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, 
shares in the Company) if they have been authorised to do so by shareholders.

If passed Resolution 6 will authorise the Directors to allot shares in the Company (and to grant rights to subscribe for, or to 
convert any security into, shares in the Company) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £50,750 (which represents approximately 
5% of the Company’s issued share capital as at 17 April 2015, being the last practicable date before the publication of this 
document).

If given, this authority will expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting or 15 months from the passing 
of the Resolution (whichever is earlier). It is the Directors’ intention to renew the allotment authority each year.

There are no present plans to exercise this authority.

DISAPPLICATION OF PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS (RESOLUTION 7)
Resolution 7, if passed, would enable the Directors to allot shares for cash on a non pre-emptive basis up to an aggregate 
nominal amount of £50,750 (which represents approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share capital as at 17 April 2015), 
without having to first offer them to shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings. This limit is in line with the guidelines 
issued by the Pre-emption Group.

If given, this authority will expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting or 15 months from the passing 
of the Resolution (whichever is earlier). It is the Directors’ intention to renew this authority each year.

There are no present plans to exercise this authority.

AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE ORDINARY SHARES (RESOLUTION 8)
Resolution 8 will be proposed as a Special Resolution to give the Company authority to purchase its own shares in the market 
during the period until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company for up to 1,000,000 shares, representing approximately 
10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company. 

The Directors have no current intention of exercising this authority to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares. The Company 
will only exercise this authority to make such a purchase in the market if the Directors consider it is in the best interests of the 
shareholders generally to do so.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED
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The Company is permitted to hold shares it has purchased in treasury, as an alternative to cancelling them. Shares held in 
treasury may subsequently be cancelled, sold for cash or used to satisfy options exercised under any of the Company’s share 
schemes. Whilst held in treasury, the shares are not entitled to receive any dividend or dividend equivalent (apart from any issue 
of bonus shares) and have no voting rights. The Directors believe it is appropriate for the Company to have the option to hold its 
own shares in treasury if, at a future date, the Directors exercise this authority. The Directors will have regard to investor group 
guidelines which may be in force at the time of any such purchase, holding or re-sale of shares held in treasury.

If given, this authority will expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General Meeting or 15 months after the passing 
of the Resolution (whichever is earlier). It is the Directors’ intention to renew this authority each year.

A SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS
We ensure our business is sustainable by taking a long term view; valuing our employees and addressing the direct and indirect 
impact we have on the environment. Our sustainability policies are applied to affect the transition of our business to a low carbon 
economy. Further details are incorporated within the Corporate Responsibility Report, which is available to shareholders and is 
also available on the Company’s website (www.northmid.co.uk).

qUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 
During the year and up to the date of this report, qualifying third party indemnity insurance was maintained for the Directors.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISk MANAGEMENT
Details regarding financial instruments are set out in note 2(J) to the accounts with further disclosure provided in note 28.

ALL EMPLOYEE SHARE PLAN
The Company’s All Employee Share Plan currently has 141 (2013:132) participants. Their total holding is 512,356 (2013: 412,307) 
shares.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Corporate governance, Audit Committee Report, the Report 
of the Directors, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
regulations. They are also responsible for ensuring that the annual report includes information required by the Listing Rules of 
the Financial Services Authority.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors are 
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with those standards. 
Under Company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing 
these financial statements the Directors are required to:

•	 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•	 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•	 state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

•	 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the 
Group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions, to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities.
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements 
and other information included in annual reports may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge:

•	 that the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group; and 

•	 that the Strategic Report and the Chairman’s Statement includes a fair view of the development and performance of the 
business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a 
description of the principle risks and uncertainties that they face.

The Directors confirm that they consider the content of the Annual Report to be fair balanced and understandable.

By order of the Board

D.A. TAYLOR 
Finance Director & Company Secretary 
17 April 2015

 

Nunn Close 
The County Estate  
Huthwaite 
Sutton-in-Ashfield 
Nottinghamshire NG17 2HW

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
In our opinion:

•	 the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at  
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended; 

•	 the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union; 

•	 the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

•	 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards 
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial statements of North Midland Construction PLC for the year ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Group 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Changes in Equity of the Group and Company, the Balance Sheets for 
the Group and Company, the Statements of Cash Flows for the Group and Company and the related notes. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company Financial Statements, as applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR 
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion 
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeprivate. 

AN OVERVIEW OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH
The purpose of the audit is to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view. The group audit 
strategy was risk based and the nature and extent of our testing was established by concluding on the areas we considered 
represented a significant risk of material misstatement. In making this assessment we:

•	 assessed the degree of estimation uncertainty associated with the judgements taken by the directors during the preparation 
of the financial statements taking into account external factors which could result in management bias. This was specifically 
focused in relation to the extent of profit or loss recognised on certain contracts. We inspected the performance of the five 
operating divisions and selected certain contracts from each operating segment which we considered presented the greatest 
risk of material misstatement for detailed testing.

•	 critically assessed the group control environment and internal systems including revenue, subcontractor costs, payroll, and 
stock and evaluated the effectiveness of the group wide controls in place.

•	 analytically reviewed the performance of the Group against our expectations based on our knowledge of the group, other 
relevant sector knowledge, the external economic conditions and historic performance and trends. 

•	 considered non routine or unusual transactions which have an inherent risk of material error.

The Group engagement team carried out audit work on all components of the Group and we designed specific audit testing to 
address the areas of significant risk of material misstatement, the scope of which is summarised in the following table. We 
discussed these areas with the audit committee and their report on those matters that they considered to be significant issues in 
relation to the financial statements is set out on page 49.
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We then reviewed the financial statements on a line by line basis together with the associated disclosures and tailored our 
testing to obtain assurance on all remaining material areas where no significant risk was identified. For these items our testing 
was principally substantive in nature using sampling techniques to obtain corroborating evidence or support to the extent we 
considered necessary to provide us with reasonable assurance in order to reach our conclusion.

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY 
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. 
For planning, we consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence 
the economic decisions of reasonable users, that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an 
appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materiality we use a lower materiality level, performance 
materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed.  Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be 
evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular circumstances of 
their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the Financial Statements.

We determined planning materiality for the financial statements as a whole to be £1,400,000 (2013 - £1,250,000) for the group and 
£1,100,000 (2013 - £950,000) for the company. In determining this, we based our assessment on 0.75% of turnover. We consider 
turnover represents one of the principal key performance indicators for the group and company and is the area that is subject to 
the greatest level of estimation uncertainty in relation to long term contract accounting. 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report for their consideration all audit differences in excess of £30,000 and 
£20,000 for the group and company respectively, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting 
on qualitative grounds. Our objective in adopting this approach is to ensure that total detected and undetected audit differences 
do not exceed our planning materiality for the Group and Company financial statements respectively as a whole.

OUR ASSESSMENT OF SIGNIFICANT RISkS OF 
MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE AREA OF SIGNIFICANT RISk

Recognition of revenue and 
attributable profit (or losses) on 
contracts: 

We considered this to be an area of 
significant risk because accounting 
for contracts forms the basis of the 
reported performance of the group. 

The extent of revenue and profit / 
loss to recognise on a particular 
partially completed contract 
represents an area of judgement 
within the financial statements 
and is therefore highly sensitive 
to material misstatement either 
through error or management bias.

For a selection of contracts from each operating segment we obtained a copy of the 
contract and critically assessed and challenged the recognition of revenue from the 
performance of the contract. We:

•	 assessed the position adopted by management in light of external evidence being 
clients certification of work done or other relevant correspondence.

•	 carried out a detailed review of the post year end performance of the contracts in 
light of estimates taken at the year end in respect of cost expected to be incurred 
and challenged assumptions which appeared inconsistent with actual post year end 
performance

•	 critically assessed the reliability of management estimates in light of the positions 
adopted in previous years compared to actual out turn.

The group engaged an external expert to advise on the anticipated outturn of a 
significant contract. We reviewed the work carried out by the expert and the outcome 
of litigation and mediation on similar contracts not related to the group. In assessing 
this work we evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the external expert 
which included making inquiries regarding interests and relationships that may have 
created a threat to the expert’s objectivity and considered other work carried out for the 
group and the extent to which it may have impaired objectivity. We met with the external 
expert to discuss their approach to the valuation and their findings and determined 
whether there were any limitations of scope or restrictions placed upon their work. We 
also visited the site to physically inspect the stage of completion of the contract.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
CONTINUED

OUR ASSESSMENT OF SIGNIFICANT RISkS OF 
MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE AREA OF SIGNIFICANT RISk

Valuation of trade receivables: 

We assessed this to be an area 
of significant risk as a result 
of our knowledge of the sector 
and the wider economy. During 
our preliminary planning work 
we identified various material 
applications for payment that 
were not being certified promptly 
increasing the exposure to bad 
debts. 

We identified individual trade receivable balances which we considered presented the 
greatest risk of exposure either by size or by age. This selection method resulted in us 
inspecting 81% of the overall trade receivables balance. 

Where possible we corroborated the year end trade receivables to post year end 
payments and customer remittances. If payment had not been received we inspected 
correspondence with the customer, including customer certifications of applications 
made for payment, customer payment history and relevant credit ratings to support the 
directors’ assessment of recoverability.

We inspected individual retention balances representing 68% of the overall 
retentions due. In each case we corroborated the value of the retention to customer 
correspondence and confirmed when the retention was due. For all retentions that were 
due we reviewed the status of the project and formed a conclusion on the recoverability 
of the balance in light of the evidence presented.

Going concern 

We considered this to be an area 
of significant risk in the context of 
the losses reported in the year and 
previous year. 

As noted in the directors’ statement on page 46 the directors have concluded that it is 
appropriate to prepare the group financial statements using the going concern basis 
which assumes that the group has adequate resources to remain in operation and that 
the directors intend it to do so for at least one year from the date of approval of the 
financial statements. 

We obtained the directors’ going concern review and assessed the reasonableness of 
the assumptions in light of the contracted order book for 2015, the recently agreed bank 
facilities and the historic performance of the group compared to budget. We considered 
the group’s banking facilities in light of reasonable sensitivities arising from changes in 
trading performance.

Following our review of the directors’ assessment we concurred with their conclusion. 
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, neither the 
directors nor we can guarantee the group’s ability to continue as a  going concern.
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OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
In our opinion:

•	 the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2006; and

•	 the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements 
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REqUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 
Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the annual report is: 

•	 materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or 

•	 apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of 
performing our audit; or 

•	 is otherwise misleading. 

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during 
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the 
annual report appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should 
have been disclosed. 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you, if, in our opinion:

•	 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or

•	 the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in 
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•	 certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•	 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

•	 the Directors’ statement, set out on page 65 in relation to going concern; and 

•	 the parts of the Corporate Governance statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

GARETH SINGLETON (Senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory auditor 
Nottingham, UK. 
17 April 2015

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Notes

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Revenue 3  193,175  177,555 

Other operating income  36  31 

 193,211  177,586 

Raw materials and consumables (34,747) (27,590) 

Other external charges (106,848) (108,060) 

Employee costs (48,919) (42,905) 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 (1,689) (1,711) 

Other operating charges (3,854) (3,175) 

Operating loss 8 (2,846) (5,855) 

Interest received  1  4 

Finance costs 9 (125) (121) 

Loss before tax (2,970) (5,972) 

Tax 10 (21)  71 

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year (2,991) (5,901) 

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent (2,991) (5,901) 

Loss per share — basic 12 (29.47p) (58.14p)

Loss per share — fully diluted 12 (29.47p) (58.14p)

The Company has elected to take exemption under Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the Parent Company’s 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The loss of the Parent Company for the year was £3,293,000 (2013: £6,001,000).



23822.04   17 April 2015 2:59 PM   Proof 13

73

OVERVIEWFINANCIALS

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EqUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqUITY OF THE GROUP

Share 
Capital

£’000

Merger 
Reserve 

£’000

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve
£’000

Retained 
Earnings

£’000
Total

£’000
Balance at 1 January 2013  1,015  455  20  16,775  18,265 

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year  –  –  – (5,901) (5,901) 

Dividends paid (note 11)  –  –  – (407) (407) 

Balance at 31 December 2013  1,015  455  20  10,467  11,957 

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year  –  –  – (2,991) (2,991) 

Balance at 31 December 2014  1,015  455  20  7,476  8,966

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqUITY OF THE COMPANY

Share 
Capital

£’000

Merger 
Reserve 

£’000

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve
£’000

Retained 
Earnings

£’000
Total

£’000
Balance at 1 January 2013 1,015  455  20  14,251  15,741

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year  –  –  – (6,001) (6,001) 

Dividends paid (note 11)  –  –  – (407) (407) 

Balance at 31 December 2013  1,015  455  20  7,843  9,333 

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year  –  –  – (3,293) (3,293) 

Balance at 31 December 2014  1,015  455  20  4,550  6,040 
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BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Group Company

Notes

2014
£’000

2013
restated*

£’000
2014

£’000

2013
restated*

£’000

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13  11,141  10,984  11,119  10,957 

Investments in subsidiaries 14  –  –  2,437  2,437 

Deferred tax asset 22  82  103  75  91 

 11,223  11,087  13,631  13,485 

Current assets
Inventories 15  1,722  1,529  1,517  1,219 

Construction contracts 16  12,838  12,989  10,621  10,963 

Trade and other receivables 17  33,275  30,692  33,805  29,597 

Current income tax receivable  13  33  173  173 

Cash and cash equivalents 24  5,276  4,877  2,832  3,255 

 53,124  50,120  48,948  45,207 

Total assets  64,347  61,207  62,579  58,692 

Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Share capital 18  1,015  1,015  1,015  1,015 

Merger reserve 19  455  455  455  455 

Capital redemption reserve  20  20  20  20 

Retained earnings  7,476  10,467  4,550  7,843 

Total equity  8,966  11,957  6,040  9,333 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 20  2,054  685  2,054  685 

Provisions 21  329  242  329  242 

 2,383  927  2,383  927 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23  51,453  47,557  52,611  47,666 

Obligations under finance leases 20  1,545  766 1,545  766 

52,998  48,323  54,156  48,432 

Total liabilities  55,381  49,250  56,539  49,359 

Total equity and liabilities  64,347  61,207  62,579  58,692 

The notes on pages 76 to 93 are an integral part of these financial statements.

* The prior year restatement is fully disclosed in note 2(p).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 17 April 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

R. MOYLE 
Chairman & Chief Executive

D.A. TAYLOR 
Finance Director & Company Secretary
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss (2,846) (5,855) (3,311) (6,574) 

Adjustment for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,689  1,711  1,683  1,693 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (31) (30) (31) (30) 

Increase/(decrease) in reinstatement reserve  87 (108)  87 (108) 

Operating cash flows before movement in working capital (1,101) (4,282) (1,572) (5,019) 

Increase in inventories (193) (33) (298) (10) 

Decrease in construction contracts 151  554 342 (839) 

Increase/(decrease) in receivables (2,583)  1,711 (4,558)  518 

Increase in payables  3,896  4,884  4,946  5,785 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  170  2,834 (1,140)  435 

Income Tax received/(paid)  20 (103)  158  178 

Interest received  1  4  1  4 

Interest paid (125) (121) (125) (121) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  66  2,614 (1,106)  496 

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (763) (1,472) (763) (1,472) 

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  46  56  46  56 

Dividends received from subsidiaries  –  350  500 

Net cash used in investing activities (717) (1,416) (367) (916) 

Cash flows from financing activities
Equity dividends paid  – (407)  – (407) 

Receipt/(repayment) of obligations under finance leases  1,050 (979)  1,050 (979) 

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  1,050 (1,386)  1,050 (1,386)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  399 (188) (423) (1,806) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2014  4,877  5,065  3,255  5,061 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2014  5,276  4,877  2,832  3,255 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise funds held at the bank which are immediately accessible.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.     PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted 
by the European Union and in accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are relevant to entities reporting under 
IFRS. The financial statements are presented in sterling and have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The following standards and amendments have been applied by the Group from 1 January 2014:

•	 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

•	 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

•	 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

•	 Amendments to the following standards

 — IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements – establishes principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 
statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. 

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – the principle in IFRS 11 is that a party to a joint arrangement recognises its rights and obligations 
arising from the arrangement rather than focussing on the legal form.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities – includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, 
including subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets – this narrow-scope amendment addresses the disclosure of information about the recoverable 
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are not 
yet effective. The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards will not result in significant changes to the Group’s 
accounting policies. The Group has commenced its assessment of the impact of these standards but is not yet in a position to 
state whether these standards would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

•	 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2018)

•	 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2017)

•	 Amendments to the following standards

 — IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (disclosure initiative) (effective 1 January 2016)

 — IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception) (effective 1 January 2016)

 — IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations) (effective 1 January 2016)

 — Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2010-2012 Cycle)

 — Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2012–2014 Cycle)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements in dealing with items which are 
considered material are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise 
stated. 

(a) cOnSOLIdatIOn
The consolidated accounts include the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 
December 2014. All inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. Where the company has control 
over an investment it is classified as a subsidiary. The company controls an investee where all three of the following elements 
are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the entity, and the ability of the investor to affect those 
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these 
elements of control. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CoNTINUEd
(B) pROpeRty, pLant and eQUIpment 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of assets less any residual value by equal instalments over their estimated lives 
which are considered to be:

Buildings – a maximum of 50 years

Plant and machinery – between 3 and 15 years

Fixtures, fittings, equipment and motor vehicles – between 3 and 10 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. All 
estimated useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted if appropriate. Gains and 
losses on disposal are recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(c) InventORIeS 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and, where applicable, direct 
labour together with a proportion of direct overheads. 

(d) cOnStRUctIOn cOntRactS 
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the 
stage of completion of activity at the balance sheet date. This is normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred 
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments 
are included to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and that they are capable of being reliably measured. 

Where the income of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract 
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

Where a group of contracts negotiated as a single framework are performed on a concurrent or continuous basis, and are so 
closely interrelated that in effect they are part of a single project with a single profit margin, then they accounted for as an 
aggregated single construction contract. Such contracts are accounted for on a weighted basis reflecting any known inequalities 
in profitability and giving a more accurate reflection of the overall performance of the contract.

Where it is anticipated that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense 
immediately. The recoverable sales value of work carried out at the balance sheet date, which has not been applied for, is 
recognised as contract balances in the balance sheet.

Amounts due from construction contract customers included in trade receivables represents unpaid applications both certified 
and uncertified.

The cost incurred in relation to work completed at the balance sheet date, net of progress buying on construction contracts, is 
recognised in trade payables. In addition, any payments received in advance of completing the work are also recognised in trade 
payables. 

(e) taxatIOn 
Income tax for the period is based on the taxable income for the year and is measured as the amount expected to be paid/received 
from the tax authorities. Taxable income differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period 
as there are some items which may never be taxable or deductible for tax and other items which may be deductible or taxable in 
other periods. Income tax for the period is calculated using the current ruling tax rate. 

Deferred tax is the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets 
and liabilities shown on the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if they arise in 
the following situations: the initial recognition of goodwill; or the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither 
accounting nor taxable profit. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of recovery or settlement 
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the statement of financial 
position date. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CoNTINUEd
The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities, or deferred tax assets, on temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, where the Parent Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
and it is not considered probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. It is the Group’s policy to 
reinvest undistributed profits arising in Group companies.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

(f) penSIOnS 
The Group operates defined contribution personal pension schemes. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those 
of the Group in independently administered funds. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the 
funds. 

(g) LeaSeS
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the fair value at the inception of the leases or if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The related liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 
position as a finance lease obligation. 

Lease payments are apportioned between interest expenses and capital redemption of the liability. Interest is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss, unless attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised to the cost of those 
assets. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term except if another systematic 
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit will flow to the Group.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

(H) ReInStatement pROvISIOn
The reinstatement provision represents the Directors’ best estimate of the fair value of expected costs relating to the statutory 
maintenance liability of two years on all contracts undertaken in the public highway. 

(I) JOInt OpeRatIOnS 
The group is a party to a joint arrangement when there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the relevant 
activities of the arrangement to the group and at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same principles as 
control over subsidiaries.

Where the group has both the rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement it classifies its interests 
as a joint operation.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements, the Group considers:

•	 The structure of the joint arrangement

•	 The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a separate vehicle

•	 The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement

•	 Any other facts and circumstances (including any other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in 
accordance with its contractually conferred rights and obligations.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CoNTINUEd
(J) fInancIaL InStRUmentS
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability 
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

The Group has the following principal financial instruments:

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at their original invoiced value, as the interest that would be recognised from discounting future cash 
receipts over the short credit period is not considered to be material. Trade receivables are reduced by appropriate allowances for 
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Interest on overdue trade receivables is recognised as it accrues. 

cash and cash equivalenTs
Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally 
classified as being short term. Cash and cash equivalents do not include other financial assets. 

inTeresT-bearing borrowings (obligaTions under finance leases and bank overdrafT)
Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a 
method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial 
liability.

Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at their original invoiced value, as the interest that would be recognised from discounting future cash 
payments over the short payment period is not considered to be material. 

(K) Segment RepORtIng 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker, who is also the Chief Executive. 

(L) InveStmentS
Investments are stated at costs less provisions for impairment.

(m) ImpaIRment Of fInancIaL aSSetS
All financial assets, except those at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting 
date.

(n) InveStmentS In SUBSIdIaRIeS 
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any provision for impairment.

(O) BUSIneSS cOmBInatIOnS UndeR cOmmOn cOntROL
Business combinations under common control are accounted for using predessor accounting whereby no assets or liabilities are 
restated to their fair value, instead the predessor carrying values relating to the acquired entity are used.

(p) pRIOR peRIOd adJUStment
In the current year the directors have carried out a review of certain balances held in construction contracts. As a consequence 
of this exercise the classification of certain balances has been amended. Accordingly the comparative receivable balance for 
construction contracts has decreased by £3,225,000 and the trade and other payables balances has decreased by the same 
amount compared to corresponding figures in the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013. The 
reclassification did not affect the operating result nor total comprehensive income in the prior year and as a consequence no third 
balance sheet has been presented.
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3. REVENUE 
Revenue represents the work done by the Group under construction contracts during the year excluding Value Added Tax. 
Revenue relates solely to the Group’s principal activities and all work done was carried out within the United Kingdom. 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING jUDGEMENTS AND kEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY 
The critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial statements are as follows:

RevenUe RecOgnItIOn and vaLUatIOn Of cOnStRUctIOn cOntRactS
The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its construction contracts. Use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the construction performed to date as a proportion of the total construction 
to be performed. The estimation of the revenue and profit recognition by reference to the stage of completion can involve 
considerable judgement around future margins. This includes the valuation of construction contract claims, incentive payments 
and variations in the contract work. 

Judgement is also applied in determining when contracts should be aggregated and treated as a single construction contract. 
Where a group of contracts are treated as an aggregated single construction contract the group has to estimate the percentage 
of construction to date as a proportion of the total construction to be performed, in addition to estimating the future margins and 
any final incentive payments to be received. The use of these estimates is intended to give the most accurate representation of 
the overall future single margin.

The group reviews these estimates and assumptions as each contract progresses. To the extent that the amounts receivable on 
the contracts are different to the amounts recorded such differences will impact revenue and cost of sales in the period in which 
such determination is made.

5. REPORTING SEGMENTS
The operating segment reporting format reflects the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. 

OpeRatIng SegmentS 
The Group is comprised of the following operating segments which are conducted in the UK:

 — ‘PLC’ – comprising Building and Civil Engineering, Highways, Utilities and NMCNomenca divisions 

 — Nomenca – mechanical and electrical engineering products and services 

Further details of the operating segments activities is provided in the Chairman’s Statement. From 1 January 2015 the building 
and civil engineering division are being split into two separate divisions, Building, and Civil Engineering due to the growth 
opportunites both divisions have.

The Group manages its operating segments trading performance and working capital by monitoring operating profit and centrally 
manages Group taxation, capital structure and expenditure including net equity and net debt.

yeaR ended 31 decemBeR 2014
Building 

& Civil 
Engineering

£’000
Highways

£’000
NMCNomenca

£’000
Nomenca

£’000
Utilities

£’000
Total

£’000
Revenue
External sales  15,772  24,970  86,905  43,608  21,920  193,175 

Result before corporate expenses (5,901)  1,071  5,859  4,165 (203)  4,991 

Corporate expenses (317) (734) (2,974) (3,265) (547) (7,837) 

Operating (loss)/profit (6,218)  337  2,885  900 (750) (2,846) 

Net finance costs (124) 

Loss before tax (2,970) 

Tax (21) 

Loss for the year (2,991) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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5. REPORTING SEGMENTS CoNTINUEd
yeaR ended 31 decemBeR 2013

Building 
& Civil 

Engineering
£’000

Highways
£’000

NMCNomenca
£’000

Nomenca
£’000

Utilities
£’000

Total
£’000

Revenue
External sales  26,064  12,816  79,620  39,346  19,709  177,555 

Result before corporate expenses (9,266)  465  5,518  2,624  681  22 

Corporate expenses (282) (244) (3,055) (1,835) (461) (5,877) 

Operating (loss)/profit (9,548)  221  2,463  789  220 (5,855) 

Net finance costs (117) 

Loss before tax (5,972) 

Tax  71 

Loss for the year (5,901) 

Segment aSSetS

2014
£’000

2013
restated

£’000

Building and Civil Engineering 11,331 16,985

Highways  7,352  4,633 

Utilities  16,550  14,145 

NMCNomenca  10,839  8,491 

Nomenca 18,275  16,953 

Total segment assets and consolidated total assets  64,347  61,207 

OtHeR Segment InfORmatIOn

Depreciation and 
amortisation 

Additions to  
non-current 

assets
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Building and Civil Engineering  197  323  218  396 

Highways  278  159  307  195 

Utilities  243  244  269  299 

NMCNomenca  966  967  1,067  1,209 

Nomenca  5  18  –  – 

Total  1,689  1,711  1,861  2,099 

There were no impairment losses recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment. All of the above relates to continuing 
operations and arose in the United Kingdom.

The results of each segment are not materially affected by seasonality.

InfORmatIOn aBOUt maJOR cUStOmeR
Revenues of approximately £79,300,000 (2013: £68,800,000) were derived from a single external customer. These revenues are 
attributable to the NMCNomenca and Nomenca segments. 
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6. EMPLOYEE NUMBERS
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year was as follows:

2014
No.

2013
No.

Management  94  80 

Administration  81  69 

Contracting  974  918 

 1,149  1,067 

7. EMPLOYEE COSTS
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Wages and salaries  43,311  37,770 

Social security costs  4,223  3,802 

Other pension costs  1,385  1,312 

  48,919  42,884 

8. OPERATING LOSS
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Operating loss is stated after charging:
Hire of plant and machinery – one-off hire charges – operating leases  7,745  6,967 

Depreciation – wholly owned  386  1,249 

 – held under finance lease  1,303  462 

Rentals payable under operating leases  293  280 

Auditor’s remuneration – audit fee of Parent Company  36  33 

 – audit fee of subsidiaries  24  24 

 – taxation services  3  3 

 – other services  3  3 

Directors’ emoluments

Fees to Non-Executive Directors  96  57 

Remuneration as Executives – salary and benefits  767  758 

 – performance related  79  92 

 –   pension contributions relating to 5 Directors in defined  
contribution schemes  125  121 

And after crediting:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and machinery  31  30 

Due to unforeseen further delays and cost overruns on the remaining legacy contracts, an operating loss has been incurred in the 
second half since the Interim Statement announcement. This has resulted from changes in accounting estimates adopted at the 
time of the interim statement of £4.19 million.

9. FINANCE COSTS
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Interest on overdraft 78 84

Interest on obligations under finance leases 47 37

125 121

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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10. TAX
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Current tax – prior year –  45 

Deferred tax – current year 20% (2013: 21%) (21)  26 

(21)  71 

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Loss before tax (2,970) (5,972) 

Tax at the UK Corporation Tax Rate of 21.5% (2013: 23.25%) (639) (1,389) 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  13  12 

Depreciation on assets not qualifying for capital allowances  10  50 

Other differences (7)  31 

Adjustments in respect of previous periods  –  45 

Deferred tax asset not recognised  571  1,194 

Corporation tax rate changes  31  128 

(21)  71 

The provision for deferred tax is calculated based on the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. The 
tax charge in the year arises from a carry back of tax losses and a deferred tax asset arising from short term timing differences. 
There are trading losses carried forward of £8,380,000 (2013: £5,686,000), a deferred tax asset relating to the losses has not been 
recognised because of uncertanty around the timing and extent of utilisation. 

11. DIVIDENDS
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 0p (2012: 3.0p) per share  – 305

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 0p (2013: 1.0p) per share.  – 102

 – 407

Due to the loss reported, the Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: £NIL).

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share, both basic and diluted, is calculated on the loss attributable to equity holders of the parent of £2,991,000 
(2013: £5,901,000) and the weighted average of 10,150,000 (2013: 10,150,000) shares in issue during the year.  
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT

Group Company

Cost

Freehold 
land and 

buildings
£’000 

Plant and 
machinery 

£’000

Fixtures, 
fittings, 

equipment 
and motor 

vehicles 
£’000

Total
£’000

Freehold 
land and 

buildings
£’000 

Plant and 
machinery 

£’000

Fixtures, 
fittings, 

equipment 
and motor 

vehicles 
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 January 2013 6,930 6,709 7,180 20,819 6,930 6,557 6,757 20,244 

Additions 992 412 695 2,099  992 412 695 2,099 

Disposals  – (14) (341) (355) – (14) (341) (355)

At 1 January 2014 7,922 7,107 7,534 22,563 7,922 6,955 7,111 21,988 

Additions  – 787 1,074 1,861  – 787 1,074 1,861 

Disposals  – (16) (390) (406)  – (16) (390) (406)

At 31 December 2014  7,922  7,878  8,218  24,018  7,922  7,726  7,795  23,443 

Depreciation
At 1 January 2013 969 3,998 5,230 10,197 969 3,875 4,823 9,667 

Charge for the year  115  664  932  1,711  115  658  920  1,693 

Disposals  – (15) (314) (329)  – (15) (314) (329)

At 1 January 2014  1,084  4,647  5,848  11,579  1,084  4,518  5,429  11,031 

Charge for the year  124  667  898  1,689  124  663  897  1,684 

Disposals – (16) (375) (391)  – (16) (375) (391)

At 31 December 2014  1,208  5,298  6,371  12,877  1,208  5,165  5,951  12,324 

Carrying amount 
At 31 December 2014  6,714  2,580  1,847  11,141  6,714  2,561  1,844  11,119 

At 31 December 2013  6,838  2,460  1,686  10,984  6,838  2,437  1,682  10,957 

At 31 December 2012 5,961 2,711 1,950 10,622 5,961 2,682 1,934 10,577

Included in the assets of the Group and Company are assets held under finance leases with a carrying amount of:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Plant 1,954 1,348

Motor vehicles 1,422 815

3,376 2,163

Additions for the Group and Company financed by new leases
Plant 305 284

Motor vehicles 793 343

1,098 627

During the year, assets with a carrying value of £1,216,000 (2013: £Nil) were sold and leased back to the company for £2,268,000. 
The substance of the arrangement is that cash has been borrowed, secured by the underlying assets. The risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership are the same as before the arrangement and the company enjoys substantially the same rights to its use. 
An option is included at the end of the agreement that make its exercise almost certain.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Shares in Group 
companies

Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Cost:

At 1 January and 31 December 2,437 2,437

Details of Group undertakings (incorporated in Great Britain):

Percentage 
of ownership 

interest and voting 
power held

Principal activities
2014

%
2013

%
North Midland Building Limited Building and Refurbishment 100 100

Nomenca Limited Mechanical and Electrical Installation 100 100

15. INVENTORIES

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Raw materials and consumables 1,722 1,529 1,517 1,219

16. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
Restated

£’000
2014

£’000

2013
Restated

£’000

Contracts in progress at balance sheet date:
Progress billings and applications for payment included in trade and 
other receivables  32,491  30,363  20,388  19,341 

Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other 
payables  –  –  –  – 

 32,491  30,363  20,388  19,341 

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses 
to date  324,288  358,227  254,738  283,046 

Less: Progress billings and applications for payment (311,450) (345,238) (244,117) (272,083) 

Amounts recoverable on construction contracts  12,838  12,989  10,621  10,963 

Retentions held by customers for contract work  5,547  6,732  3,079  5,604

ReStatement
In the current year the directors have carried out a review of certain balances held in construction contracts. As a consequence 
of this exercise the classification of certain balances has been amended. Accordingly the comparative receivable balance for 
construction contracts has decreased by £3,225,000 and the trade and other payables balances has decreased by the same 
amount compared to corresponding figures in the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013. The 
reclassification did not affect the operating result nor total comprehensive income in the prior year and as a consequence no third 
balance sheet has been presented.



23822.04   17 April 2015 2:59 PM   Proof 13

86

NORTH MIDLAND CONSTRUCTION PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 WWW.NORTHMID.CO.UK STOCK CODE: NMD

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Trade receivables 32,491 30,363 20,388 19,341

Other receivables  28 30  27 30

Prepayments and accrued income  756 299  693 242

Amount owed by Group undertakings  –  –  12,697 9,984

33,275 30,692 33,805 29,597

The average credit period (excluding retentions) taken on sales is 51 days (2013: 42 days restated). The trade receivables 
are valued at amounts approximating to fair value and no allowance has been made against the trade receivables in respect 
of construction contracts. Trade receivables compile of applications for payment in respect of construction contracts. Total 
applications for payment that have not been certified of £21,964,000 (2013: £15,997,000), Company £10,582,000 (2013: £6,198,000). 
Certified amounts of approximately £2,294,000 (2013: £1,698,000), Company £1,965,000 (2013: £1,478,000) were past due as at  
31 December 2014, but have not been impaired as the Directors consider these debts to be fully recoverable, which is consistent 
with past default experience. All balances are less than 6 months overdue, except £Nil which is less than 12 months overdue.

18. SHARE CAPITAL
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Authorised:

12,500,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 1,250 1,250

Allotted, Issued and fully paid:

10,150,000 (2013: 10,150,000) ordinary shares of 10p each 1,015 1,015

19. MERGER RESERVE
 

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
At beginning of year 455 455 455 455

On issue of shares during the year — — — —

At end of year 455 455 455 455

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year  1,545  766  1,545  766 

In the second to fifth years inclusive  2,054  685  2,054  685 

Present value of lease payments  3,599  1,451  3,599  1,451 

Future finance charges payable on leases:
Within one year  88  30  88  30 

In the second to fifth years inclusive  32  16  32  16 

 120  46  120  46 

Total amounts payable under finance leases  3,719  1,497  3,719  1,497 

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 3 years. For the 
year ended 31 December 2014 the average effective borrowing rate was 2.1% (2013 - 1.7%) over bank base rate payable quarterly, 
subject to a minimum base rate of 0.5%. Future finance charges have been estimated assuming a bank base rate of 1%. 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount.

21. PROVISIONS

Reinstatement 
reserve

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Group and Company 
At beginning of year  242 350

Additional provision in year  183 149

Utilisation of provision (96) (257) 

At end of year  329 242

The reinstating provision represents the Directors’ best estimate of the fair value of expected costs relating to the statutory 
maintenance liability of 2 years on all contracts undertaken in the public highway. It is expected this will be utilised over 2 years.

22. DEFERRED TAX

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

At beginning of year (103) (77) (91) (77) 

Recognised in income statement  21 (26)  16 (14) 

At end of year (82) (103) (75) (91) 

The deferred tax balance can be analysed as follows:

Group Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances (23) (46) (19) (39) 

Other differences (59) (57) (56) (52) 

(82) (103) (75) (91) 
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
Restated

£’000
2014

£’000

2013
Restated

£’000

Trade payables  46,379  41,465  46,725  40,808 

Other taxes and social security costs  2,915  4,536  3,027  4,663 

Accruals and other payables  2,159  1,556  2,087  1,423 

Amounts owed to Group undertakings  –  –  772  772 

 51,453  47,557  52,611  47,666 

The average credit period taken for trade purchases, excluding retentions, is 75 days (2013: 65 days restated). The fair value of all 
trade and other payables approximates to their carrying amount.

ReStatement
In the current year the directors have carried out a review of certain balances held in construction contracts. As a consequence 
of this exercise the classification of certain balances has been amended. Accordingly the comparative receivable balance for 
construction contracts has decreased by £3,225,000 and the trade and other payables balances has decreased by the same 
amount compared to corresponding figures in the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013. The 
reclassification did not affect the operating result nor total comprehensive income in the prior year and as a consequence no third 
balance sheet has been presented. 

24. CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS
Any bank indebtedness is secured via a debenture over the assets of the Group and a fixed charge over the Group’s freehold 
properties. 

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Aviva Insurance Limited, Lloyds Bank PLC, Euler Hermes Europe S.A. (N.V.) and HCC International Insurance Company Plc have 
given Performance Bonds to a value of £4,726,472 (2013: £4,533,973) on the Group’s behalf. These bonds have been made with 
recourse to the Group.

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Land and buildings Other leases
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
2014

£’000
2013

£’000
Lessee activity
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period  139  114  94  166 

At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments
under non-cancellable leases which fall due as follows:
Within one year  125  132  91  109 

In the second to fifth years inclusive  228  272  110  175 

 353  404  201  284 

It is Group policy to rent certain items of office equipment, plant and its premises under operating lease agreements. The lease 
terms of these agreements vary. No contingent rent is payable.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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27. PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
The total cost charged to income of £1,385,000 (2013: £1,121,000) represents pension contributions payable by the Group as at  
31 December 2014 contributions of £215,000 (2013: £182,000) due in respect of the current reporting period had not been paid 
over to the schemes.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT
The Group is exposed through its operations to one or more of the following financial risks:

InteReSt Rate RISK
The Group has financed its operations through a mixture of retained profits, bank borrowings and finance leases when required, 
this being a variable rate bank overdraft. The Group manages interest rate risk in respect of surplus cash balances by making 
deposits with suitable financial institutions. Given the level of net funds the Group does not consider the downside interest rate 
risk to be significant.

LIQUIdIty RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, by the use of its 
overdraft and finance lease contracts, and availability of finance for capital projects before undertaking such projects, including 
the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be 
predicted, such as natural disasters. Forecasts and budget are approved by the Board to predict expected operational expenses 
each month.

The Group had cash balances at the year end of £5,276,000 (2013: £4,877,000) and has facilities in place to meet all anticipated 
working capital requirements.

cRedIt RISK
The Group extends credit to recognised creditworthy third parties. Trade receivable balances are monitored to minimise the 
Group’s exposure to bad debts. Individual credit limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set 
by the Board. Independent credit ratings are used if available to set suitable credit limits. If there is no independent rating, the 
Board assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. 
The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. At the year end none of the trade receivable balances that were not past 
due or specifically provided against exceed set credit limits and management does not expect any losses from non-performance 
by these counterparties. Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents deposited with financial institutions. The Group 
deposits its surplus funds with only high quality banks and financial institutions with a minimum independent credit rating of A1. 
Such deposits have a maturity of no more than one month. 

The Directors consider the Group’s relatively diverse operations provide a reduction in concentration risk by sector, geography 
and exposure to individual customers, except the major customer as noted in note 5 where a framework agreement and long 
standing relationship is in place. Loans to/from joint operations are on normal arms-length terms. There has been no change 
in the Group’s exposure to credit risk or how the risk is managed from the prior year. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date assuming that any security held has no value. 
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 17. On a weekly basis the Finance Director 
reviews overdue balances and appropriate action is taken to ensure recovery. At the year end a full review is undertaken to assess 
for any impairment based on past default experience.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT CoNTINUEd
cLaSSeS and faIR vaLUe Of fInancIaL InStRUmentS

Group Company

2014
£’000

2013
Restated

£’000
2014

£’000

2013
Restated

£’000

Financial assets
Construction contracts  12,838  12,989  10,621  10,963 

Trade and other receivables  33,275  30,692  33,805  29,597 

Cash and cash equivalents  5,276  4,877  2,832  3,255 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables  51,453  47,557  52,611  47,666 

Obligations under finance leases  3,599  1,451  3,599  1,451

It is the Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of all the financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value.

categORIeS Of fInancIaL InStRUmentS
All financial assets are categorised as loans and receivables. 

All financial liabilities are categorised as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

matURIty Of fInancIaL InStRUmentS
The majority of trade and other receivables and construction contract balances excluding retentions are due between one and 
three months. Details of amounts overdue are provided in note 17.

The maturity of finance leases is provided in note 20. 

The maturity of trade and other payables excluding retentions is between one and three months.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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29. kEY MANAGEMENT 
The Directors consider that the key management personnel are the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Divisional 
Managers as listed below.

Key management and personnel during 2014 were as follows:

PLC Board: R. Moyle (*)
D.A.Taylor (*)
M.W. Blakeway (resigned 22 May 2014)
A.D. Langman 
D.S. Proud 
S.J.T. Brown 
I. Elliott 
D.P. Rogers

Nomenca Ltd 
Directors: A.D. Langman

R.A.J. Culshaw 

Divisional Managers:
Building (new reporting division  
from 1 January 2015): P. Stuart

R. Jones
D. Blount

Civils: J. Hatton
D. Andrews
J. Stones
J. Felstead

Highways & Utilities: G. Poyzer
M.J. Queally
A. Walker 
K. Ogden

Nomenca: W.T. Brelsford
M.H. Shadrick 

NMCNomenca: J.A. Smith
M. Lee 
P.D. Jackson

Head office: G. Clegg
M.W. Hanrahan
M.L. Mason 
K. Morris
M. Blakeway

* R. Moyle and D.A. Taylor are also Directors of Nomenca Limited

Key management cOStS 
Salary, employers national insurance contributions and benefits £3,041,000 (2013: £2,802,000) pension contributions £369,000 
(2013: £231,000)
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30. CONTROLLING PARTY 
The Company is under the control of the Moyle family albeit there is not a single controlling party. Details of R. Moyle’s associates, 
relationship and shareholding are listed below:

2014 2013
Mrs M.G. Moyle (Mother to R. Moyle) 232,877 247,277

Miss K.E.F. Moyle (Daughter of R. Moyle) 2,000 2,000

Miss E.R. Moyle (Daughter of R. Moyle) 2,000 2,000

Mrs D. Thompson (Sister to R. Moyle) 247,400 247,400

Mr I.B. Speke, Mrs D. Hutchinson & Mr M.S. Garratt 1962 T.G. Moyle Settlement 2,427,228 2,422,228

Mr I.B. Speke, Mrs D. Hutchinson & Mr M.S. Garratt 1967 T.G. Moyle Settlement 775,388 775,388

Mr P.R. Wood & Mr W.E.C. Cursham William Morris Settlement 857,574 857,574

Mr R. Moyle, Mrs A.E.F. Moyle & Mr R.L. Symington 1996 R. Moyle Settlement 688,660 678,660

On disposal of the shares from the William Morris Settlement, the Moyle family have the option to purchase any such shares 
before they are made available to the public.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
tHe gROUp
As permitted by the scope paragraph in IAS 24, balances between Group companies which are eliminated on consolidation have 
not been disclosed as part of the Group accounts.

The Company
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Due to North Midland Building Limited (772) (772) 

Due from Nomenca Limited  12,697  9,984 

 11,925  9,212 

During the year the Company carried out £Nil (2013: Nil) of work for Nomenca Limited. Nomenca Limited carried out £1,433,000 
(2013: £1,009,000) of work for the Company. 

32. jOINT OPERATIONS
The Group is currently involved in the following joint operations:

Group’s Share
2014 2013

– with Costain Limited, MWH Treatment Ltd and Mott MacDonald Bentley Ltd (The E5 Joint Venture) 25% 25%

 waste water major projects – Coventry, UK

– with Laing O’Rourke Imtech (Ambergate Working Alliance) 50% 0%

 construction of reinforced concrete coverered storage resevoir – Derbyshire, UK

Both joint operation activities are strategic to the company and its operating division NMCNomenca.

The Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 incorporate the following relating to the joint operations:

2014
£’000

2013
£’000

Revenue 13,609 17,500

Expenses 12,108 16,243

Assets 375 937

Liabilities 375 937

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED
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33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Capital comprises of issued ordinary share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

•	 to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefits for other stakeholders, and 

•	 to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it 
in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

The Group prepares regular cash flow forecasts and monitors them against the facilities available to the Group.
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Notice is hereby given that the Sixty-seventh Annual General Meeting of North Midland Construction PLC will be held at Nunn 
Close, The County Estate, Huthwaite, Sutton-in-Ashfield, Nottinghamshire on 21 May 2015 at noon for the following purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Receive and adopt the Directors’ Report, the Strategic Report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 

2014 and the Auditor’s Report thereon. 

2. To reappoint the following Directors:

i) I. Elliott

ii) D.P. Rogers

iii) S.J.T. Brown

3. To appoint BDO LLP as Auditors of the Company under section 489 of the Companies Act 2006 until the conclusion of the next 
General Meeting of the Company at which audited accounts are laid before members.

4. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the part containing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy). 

5. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set out within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

ADDITIONAL RESOLUTIONS
SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions, of which Resolution 6 will be proposed and voted on as an Ordinary 
Resolution and Resolutions 7 and 8 will be proposed and voted on as Special Resolutions.

6. That, pursuant to section 551 of the 2006 Act the Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise 
all powers of the Company to allot Relevant Securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £50,750 (which represents 
approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), provided that (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) this 
authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this Resolution 
or on the date 15 months from the date of the passing of this Resolution (whichever is the earlier), save that, in each case, the 
Company may make an offer or agreement before the authority expires which would or might require Relevant Securities to be 
allotted after the authority expires and the Directors may allot Relevant Securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as 
if the authority had not expired.

In this Resolution, “Relevant Securities” means shares in the Company or rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into 
shares in the Company; a reference to the allotment of Relevant Securities includes the grant of such a right; and a reference 
to the nominal amount of a Relevant Security which is a right to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the 
Company is to the nominal amount of the shares which may be allotted pursuant to that right.

This authority is in substitution for and shall replace all existing authorities (which, to the extent unused at the date of this 
Resolution, are revoked with immediate effect).

7. That, subject to the passing of Resolution 6 above, and pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act, the Directors be and are 
generally empowered to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the 
authority granted by Resolution 6 as if section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply to any such allotment, up to an aggregate 
nominal amount of £50,750 (which represents approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), and (unless previously 
revoked, varied or renewed) this power shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company 
after the passing of this Resolution or on the date 15 months from the date of the passing of this Resolution (whichever is 
the earlier), save that the Company may make an offer or agreement before this power expires which would or might require 
equity securities to be allotted for cash after this power expires and the Directors may allot equity securities for cash pursuant 
to any such offer or agreement as if this power had not expired.

This power is in substitution for and shall replace all existing powers (which, to the extent unused at the date of this resolution, 
are revoked with immediate effect).

NOTICE OF MEETING
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8. That, pursuant to section 701 of the 2006 Act, the Company be and is generally and unconditionally authorised to make market 
purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the 2006 Act) of ordinary shares of £0.10 each in the capital of the Company 
(“Shares”), provided that:

i) the maximum number of Shares which may be purchased is 1,000,000 (representing 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary 
share capital);

ii) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for a Share is £0.10;

iii) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for a Share is the higher of: (i) an amount equal to 105 per 
cent of the average of the middle market quotations for the Shares as derived from the Daily Official List of the London 
Stock Exchange plc for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the purchase is made; and (ii) an 
amount equal to the higher of the price of the last independent trade of a Share and the highest current independent bid 
for a Share on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out and (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) shall 
expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this Resolution or on the 
date 15 months from the date of the passing of this Resolution (whichever is the earlier), save that the Company may enter 
into a contract to purchase Shares before the expiry of this authority under which such purchase will or may be completed 
or executed wholly or partly after this authority expires and may make a purchase of Shares pursuant to any such contract 
as if this authority had not expired.

By order of the Board

D.A. TAYLOR 
Finance Director & Company Secretary 
17 April 2015

 

Nunn Close 
The County Estate 
Huthwaite 
Sutton-in-Ashfield 
Nottinghamshire  
NG17 2HW
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

21 MAY 2015
Annual General Meeting

30 jUNE 2015
Interim period end

13 AUGUST 2015
Half Yearly financial results

31 DECEMBER 2015 
Year end

1 APRIL 2016
Preliminary results announcement
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